CITY OF LYNDEN

Mayor
Scott Korthuis

Council Members

Gary Bode

Ron De Valois
Gerald Kuiken
Nick H. Laninga
Brent Lenssen
Kyle Strengholt
Mark Wohlrab

City Council Agenda - Regular Meeting
City Hall Annex, 205 4" Street
March 16, 2020

Call to Order

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call

Oath of Office

Approval of Minutes

1. Draft Council Minutes- Regular Meeting- March 2, 2020

ltems from the Audience Scheduled

2. Presentation: 2020 Census Information

Unscheduled (20 Minutes)

Audience members may address the Council on any issue other than those scheduled
for a public hearing or those on which the public hearing has been closed. Prior to
commenting please state your name, address, and topic. Please keep comments under
4 minutes.

Consent Agenda

3. Interlocal Agreement with City of Bellingham for Vactor Waste Facility Use
4. Professional Service Agreement — BOSTEC, Inc.
5. Client Service Agreement- Pinnacle

Public Hearing- None




Unfinished Business

6. PRD Amendment 19-01 — RB Development (Parkview Apts)

New Business

7. Reinstate Parks Maintenance Supervisor Position
8. Interim Countywide Planning Policy Interlocal Agreement

Other Business

9. Public Safety Draft Minutes- February 12, 2020
10. Draft-Public Works Committee Meeting Minutes March 4, 2020
11. Calendar

Executive Session

Adjournment

300 4" Street, Lynden, WA 98264
www.lyndenwa.org



CITY OF LYNDEN

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Meeting Date: March 16, 2020

Name of Agenda ltem: Draft Council Minutes- Regular Meeting
Section of Agenda: Approval of Minutes

Department: Administration

Council Committee Review: Legal Review:

0 Community Development [ Public Safety Yes - Reviewed

O Finance O Public Works [0 No - Not Reviewed
O Parks [0 Other: N/A [0 Review Not Required
Attachments:

Draft Council Minutes- Regular Meeting

Summary Statement:

Draft Council Minutes- Regular Meeting

Recommended Action:

For Council review.




CITY OF LYNDEN

CITY COUNCIL
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING

March 2, 2020
1. CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Korthuis called to order the March 2, 2020 regular session of the Lynden City Council
at 7:00 p.m. at the Lynden City Hall Annex.

ROLL CALL

Members present: Mayor Scott Korthuis and Councilors Gary Bode, Ron De Valois, Jerry
Kuiken, Brent Lenssen, Nick Laninga, Kyle Strengholt, and Mark Wohlrab.

Members absent: None

Staff present: Finance Director Anthony Burrows, Fire Chief Mark Billmire, Parks Director
Vern Meenderinck, Planning Director Heidi Gudde, Police Chief Steve Taylor, Public Works
Director Steve Banham, City Clerk Pam Brown, City Administrator Mike Martin, and City
Attorney Bob Carmichael.

OATH OF OFFICE

Mayor Korthuis administered the Oath of Office to Police Officer Alex Pluschakov. Police

Chief Steve Taylor briefly introduced Officer Pluschakov and welcomed him to the City of
Lynden’s Police Department.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Councilor De Valois moved and Councilor Wohlrab seconded to approve the regular
council minutes of February 18, 2020 and the special council minutes of the Community

Development Committee of February 19 with correction of the two errors noted by
Councilor De Valois. Motion approved on a 7-0 vote.

ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE

Scheduled: None

300 4t Street, Lynden, WA 98264
www.lyndenwa.org Page 1 of 8



CITY OF LYNDEN

CITY COUNCIL
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING

Unscheduled: Jude Gray, 206 2" Street, Lynden, WA

Ms. Gray spoke to a question raised at the Planning Commission meeting regarding the RB
Development on the Heritage Park project. The question was whether there have been any
studies regarding the need for senior housing. Ms. Gray then discussed the two buildings
over by the golf course that were designed for residents that were 55. The project failed
because they were unable to find seniors willing to rent those apartments.

City Attorney Bob Carmichael reminded council that this matter is not yet before them. It has
not yet been signed by the Planning Commission. What was just discussed is purely
informational and not to be considered in the council decision because the matter is not before
council.

2. CONSENT AGENDA

Approval of Payroll Disbursed — February 16 through February 29, 2020

o Yo 1= =l e R $277,663.15
(@112 Y/ [0 [T 0 TN = e $62,260.40
Warrant Liability .........ccooooiiiiiiiie e $57,910.63
Subtotal $397,834.18
Paychex EFT Liability $6,087.61
Total EFT & Other Liabilities $403,921.79

Approval of Claims — March 6, 2020

Manual Warrants No. 74850 | through | 74854 $25,817.17
EFT Payment Pre-Pays $59,044.16
Sub Total Pre-Pays $84,861.33
Voucher Warrants No. | 74855 | through | 74896 $77,229.31
EFT Payments $0.00
Sub Total $77,229.31
Total Accts. Payable $162,090.64

300 4t Street, Lynden, WA 98264
www.lyndenwa.org Page 2 of 8



CITY OF LYNDEN

CITY COUNCIL
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING

Resolution No. 1019 Authorizing the Acceptance of Whatcom County Economic Development
Investment Program Grant and Loan Funds to Improve West Front Street to City Arterial
Standards

The City of Lynden is pursuing a combination grant/loan from Whatcom County’s Economic
Development Investment (EDI) Fund for the reconstruction of west Front Street to City arterial
standard. This street is a federally classified street and identified as a City “impact fee funded”
street.

Local governments may apply to Whatcom County for EDI funds to construct publicly owned
infrastructure, facilities, and related improvements. EDI funds are intended to encourage the
creation or retention of private sector businesses and jobs in Whatcom County. Staff believes

EDI funding is an appropriate source for the west Front Street improvements since there is
planned development in 2020 on this substandard street per the development agreement
recently approved for Front Street Station.

Resolution No. 1019 will demonstrate to the Whatcom County Council the support of the
Lynden City Council for this street improvement project and the City’s commitment to repay
the loan using a combination of TBD, Impact Fees and General Funds.

Councilor Kuiken moved and Councilor DeValois seconded to approve the Consent
Agenda. Motion approved on a 7-0 vote.

3. PUBLIC HEARING

Ordinance No. 1604-Extension of the Pepin Creek Moratorium

The Pepin Creek moratorium has been in place since September of 2016. It was established
in recognition of significant constraints associated with what is now known as the Pepin Creek
Sub-area. The City has undertaken significant efforts to examine these constraints and
develop solutions which would allow for growth in this area. Since then the City Council
approved the Pepin Creek Sub-Area Plan and Comprehensive Plan amendment that
addresses circulation, open space and assigned land use and zoning within the area.

Additionally, because of the significant infrastructure improvements associated with the creek
re-alignment and the improvement of Benson and Double Ditch Roads, Council has
recognized that work must be undertaken in a phased approach and planning efforts
continue.

300 4t Street, Lynden, WA 98264
www.lyndenwa.org Page 3 of 8



CITY OF LYNDEN

CITY COUNCIL
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING

As these final elements are defined and executed, City staff recommends that the Council
extend the moratorium an additional 6 months from March 9, 2020 to September 2020.

Mayor Korthuis opened the Public Hearing at 7:13 p.m.
There were no comments.
Mayor Korthuis closed the Public Hearing at 7:13 p.m.

Councilor Lenssen moved and Councilor Laninga seconded to approve Ordinance No.
1604, extending by six months, the existing moratorium of development on those
properties previously identified within the Pepin Creek Subarea. Motion approved on a
7-0 vote.

4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

Ordinance No. 1601 — Comprehensive Plan Amendment 19-01 (Pepin Creek)

The City of Lynden amended its Comprehensive Plan in December of 2018 to create the
Pepin Creek Sub-Area. At that time the Future Land Use Map was also amended to reflect
the arrangement of low and medium residential density proposed within the draft of the Pepin
Creek Sub-Area Plan.

Since that time the zoning layout of the Pepin Creek Sub-Area was altered. The amendment
to the Comprehensive Plan proposed at the end of 2019 updates the Future Land Use Map to
correspond with these revisions. On December 16, 2019 the City Council reviewed the
Planning Commission’s recommendation and took public comment on the amendment.

The Council subsequently voted to approve the change. Since then the review period with the
Department of Commerce has concluded without comment and Planning staff has drafted the
attached Ordinance No. 1601.

Councilor Lenssen moved and Councilor Strengholt seconded to approve Ordinance No.
1601 amending the City’s Comprehensive Plan to reflect land use changes consistent
with the Pepin Creek Subarea plan as presented and authorize the Mayor’s signature on
the documents. Motion approved on a 7-0 vote.

Ordinance No. 1600 — Pepin Creek Subarea Plan
In September of 2018 the City released a draft of the Pepin Creek Subarea Plan (PCSA). The
intent of the plan is to develop a guide for future growth patterns appropriate for the Lynden

300 4t Street, Lynden, WA 98264
www.lyndenwa.org Page 4 of 8



CITY OF LYNDEN

CITY COUNCIL
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING

community. Given the projected costs of infrastructure in the Pepin Creek Subarea, City staff
explored alternate circulation routes and conducting traffic studies to test alternate designs.
As a result, the draft Subarea plan was revised. Revisions included a new street layout and
adjustments consistent with zoning code amendments adopted in March of 2019.

On November 21, 2019 a public hearing was held before the Planning Commission. The
resulting recommendation from the Commission was for approval with specific considerations
outlined for the City Council.

On December 12, 2016 the City Council reviewed the Commission’s recommendation and
heard public testimony. The hearing concluded with a vote to approve the Sub-Area plan with
specific conditions related to the area’s circulation pattern. The plan reflects these revisions.
Subsequently, the review period with the Department of Commerce has since concluded
without comment on the document. Ordinance No0.1600 has been drafted and is before
Council for review.

Councilor Lenssen moved and Councilor Strengholt seconded to approve Ordinance No.
1600, adopting the Pepin Creek Subarea Plan as presented and authorizing the Mayor’s
signature on the document. Motion approved on a 7-0 vote.

5. NEW BUSINESS

Amendment to Downtown Residential Parking Agreement — 610 Front Street

Property owners of 610 Front Street (the liquor store location), now known as Porch Swing
Properties, LLC, are developing plans for a significant renovation of the existing building.
Parking requirements have been a concern as the renovation would add two additional floors
for residential use to a building that is constructed to the property line and located within the
Historic Business District.

On September 3, 2019 the City Council approved a parking agreement which would provide a
parking easement and assigned a value to the necessary code required parking stalls. In
addition, the parking agreement offered as many as 6 annual parking passes at a rate set out
by the agreement and subject to adjustment.

The building owners have continued the planning and design process on this project and
found that an additional unit, for a total of 7 units, would fit within the building renovation.
Additionally, because the first-floor unit is required to be ADA accessible and provide a
handicapped parking space, the three on-site spaces planned for the building’s garage was

300 4t Street, Lynden, WA 98264
www.lyndenwa.org Page 5 of 8



CITY OF LYNDEN

CITY COUNCIL
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING

reduced to two. As a result, an amended parking agreement has been proposed which would
accommodate a parking easement for 5 parking spaces, rather than 3, and permit the
issuance of as many as 7 annual parking permits, rather than 6.

All residential parking is to occur within the three downtown parking lots noted in the
agreement. The City’s legal counsel created the parking agreement for the Council’s
consideration which would replace the previously approved agreement. The property owner
has assumed legal costs associated with amending the agreement.

Councilor Lenssen moved and Councilor Strengholt seconded to approve the amended
downtown residential parking agreement with Porch Swing Properties, LLC, the owners
of 610 Front Street and to approve the Mayor’s signature on the agreement. Motion
approved on a 7-0 vote.

Air Space Encroachment Easement Agreement — 610 Front Street

The property owners of 610 Front Street (Front Porch Swing LLC) are developing plans for a
significant renovation of the exiting building. The renovation would add two additional floors
and 7 residential units. Notably the western facade of this building is the location of a well-
known mural sponsored by the Lions Club.

The owners seek to preserve / restore this mural, but it is located on the property line in an
area that allows for zero lot line construction. The Council agreed that mural preservation was
important and on September 3, 2019 approved a restrictive covenant that affects the City-
owned parking lot immediately to the west. The Covenant prevents construction along a 10-
foot swath on the City property immediately adjacent to the mural.

The building owners have continued the planning and design process on this project and
desire that some architectural features of the building addition encroach into the City’s
property by as much as 12 inches. These encroachments, such as windowsills and parapets,
are located on upper stories above the mural. Although a restrictive covenant is in place that
prevents adjacent construction, encroachments were not addressed or permitted in the
previous agreement.

With support from the Community Development Committee the property owner has requested
the agreement for an air space encroachment. The property owner has assumed legal costs
associated with the writing of the agreement.

300 4t Street, Lynden, WA 98264
www.lyndenwa.org Page 6 of 8



CITY OF LYNDEN

CITY COUNCIL
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING

Councilor Lenssen moved and Councilor Bode seconded to approve the air space
encroachment agreement with the property owner of 610 Front Street affecting the City’s
parking lot property located at the intersection of Front and Seventh Streets and to
authorize the Mayor’s signature on the document. Motion approved on a 7-0 vote.

6. OTHER BUSINESS

Council Committee Updates

Councilor Lenssen reporting for the Community Development Committee with involved
discussion of:

e Meeting on March 26 concerning Pepin Creek Lite

e Meeting on April 8 also related to the Pepin Creek Lite

Councilor Bode reporting for the Public Works Committee which involved discussion of:
e Rates for mobile home sewer hookups
e Insurance for utility service from meter to home — the city would not authorize the use
of the city name
e Water line hook-up for a local church

Councilor Wohlrab reporting for the Public Safety Committee which involved discussion of:
e EOC Covid-19 briefing ( A few of the items discussed):
o No confirmed cases in Whatcom County — 2 people are under supervision
o Whatcom County Health Department is expecting that will be confirmed cases
locally
o Symptoms are generally a fever, dry cough and fatigue, some will have no signs
or symptoms at all
o Currently there is no vaccine
e Councilor Wohlrab will provide all the information discussed at the meeting to the city
administrator for distribution to staff.

300 4t Street, Lynden, WA 98264
www.lyndenwa.org Page 7 of 8



CITY OF LYNDEN

CITY COUNCIL
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING

7. EXECUTIVE SESSION
Council did not have an executive session.

8. ADJOURNMENT

The March 2, 2020 regular session of the Lynden City Council adjourned at 7:45 p.m.

Pamela D. Brown, MMC Scott Korthuis
City Clerk Mayor

300 4t Street, Lynden, WA 98264
www.lyndenwa.org Page 8 of 8



CITY OF LYNDEN

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Meeting Date: March 16, 2020

Name of Agenda ltem: Presentation: 2020 Census Information
Section of Agenda: Items from Audience: Scheduled
Department:

Council Committee Review: Legal Review:

0 Community Development [ Public Safety [ Yes - Reviewed

O Finance O Public Works O No - Not Reviewed
O Parks Other: None Review Not Required
Attachments:

None

Summary Statement:

Whatcom Counts Complete Count Committee (WCCC) is sponsored by WCOG, and co-
chaired by Whatcom Community Foundation and Opportunity Council.

Sara Bernardy, Census Coordinator coordinates education and outreach about the
upcoming Decennial Census, partnering with local governments, businesses and non-profits,
schools, faith-based and community organizations to help get the word out.

April 1st is Census Day and it is absolutely critical that we ensure our communities are
aware and understand how important it is that we obtain a complete and accurate count.

Recommended Action:

Presentation only, action not required.




United States”

Census

2020 CENSUS 101 FOR
COMMUNITY LEADERS

What You Need To Know ‘”'?:’?;Tu'iq“T"é EE=

nsus




Everyone Counts:
April 1, 2020 is Census Day

The Census counts p @ N —
every person living w@'ﬁ
I

In the U.S. once,

only once, and Iin ﬁ n ‘

T

the right place. =— SIS




Why do we have a Census?

The U.S. Constitution
mandates that

everyone in the
country be counted
every 10 years.

The first Census was in 1790




Why do we have a Census?

Distribution of more than $675 billion in federal funds to
states, counties, and communities each year for the next

10 years!
Approximately $2400 per person, per year for 10 yrs

It's about fair representation! The Census results are used

to reapportion the 435 seats in the House of

Representatives, determining how many seats each
T states gets.

Washington gained a seat in 2010!




Representation in Congress

2010 Official Results

GAINED LOST

Arizona +1 linois -1
Florida +2 lowa -1
Georgia +1 Louisiana -1
Nevada +1 Massachusetts -1

South Carolina +1 Michigan -1
Texas +4 Missouri -1

Utah +1 New Jersey -1
Washington +1 New York -2
Ohio -2

Pennsylvania -1




The Census
determines
the

Distribution

of Federal
Funds

Medicaid

SNAP/WIC

Planning for roads, transportation,
and emergency

Education/Pell Grant

Housing Vouchers/Section 8

Head Start



YOUR
INFORMATION IS
\ \\\ PROTECTED BY
>\§2) LAW

-

The law Is clear—no
personal Informatlo
can be shared.




Title 13 ensures the protection of your data

e Law states that information collected can
only be used for statistical purposes

» Your responses cannot be used against you
by any government agency or court in any
way! Not by the FBI, Homeland Security,
and not by the US Immigration Customs
Enforcement (ICE)

e All Census Bureau staff take a lifetime oath
to protect your personal information

» Penalties for wrongful disclosure — 5 years
in prison and/or $250,000 in fines




The 2020 Census will

be easy to answer
 Easy to answer individually: Umtedstates

e Internet ‘EI'ISUS

 Telephone
 Paper form

» Field workers will use cell phones and
electronic devices

e It will be in Spanish and English

12 languages by phone

 Language guide of 5g other
languages




What are the
10 questions

of the 2020
Census?

1. Address (Rent/Own)

>. Phone Number

3. Number of people living at the address
4. Name

5. Sex

6. Age and Date of Birth

7. Race

8. Hispanic, Latino, or Spanish Origin

9. Whether a person lives or stays
somewhere else

10. Relationship

22




MARCH 12T

March 12-20 An invitation to respond TO JU LY 31ST

online to the 2020 Census.

(Some households YOU WILL BE

will also receive paper

questionnaires.) ABLE TO SELF

March 16-24 A reminder letter, | RES PO N D

If you haven’'t O N Ll N E

responded yet:

March 26-April 3 | A reminder postcard.

April 8-16 A reminder letter and
paper questionnaire.

April 20-27 A final reminder postcard
before we follow up in
person.




Census Online Portal is Now Open for
Self-Response!

BE An official website of the United States government Here's how you know +

United States

Census FAQ  INSTRUCTIONS @ ENGLISH +
2020

Welcome to the 2020 Census

 |t's quick and easy. The 2020 Census questionnaire will take about 10

Sh United States®
ope CenSldS

 |t's safe, secure, and confidential. Your information and privacy are

protected. START HERE >

* Your response helps to direct billions of dollars in federal funds to

local communities for schools, roads, and other public services. . .
. . Start Questionnaire
» Results from the 2020 Census will be used to determine the number
of seats each state has in Congress and your political representation
at all levels of government.

minutes to complete. your foUI‘e 20

Getting started:

* You must complete your questionnaire once you begin. If you leave
the questionnaire and return later, you will have to start over.

» Do not use the web browser buttons (back, forward, or close
browser). Use the buttons within the questionnaire to navigate.

» For best results, use the latest version of Chrome, Firefox, Internet
Explorer, or Safari. Enable cookies.

ENGLISH  ESPANOL  ch3Z(f&ifK) TIENGVIET 10| PYCCKMM du,=Jl TAGALOG  POLSKI  FRANCAIS




Census Online Self-Response
Refer to 12-digit Census ID on your Invitation

BE An official website of the United States government Here's how you know =

Cl,éltrniu‘lstatg
SU FAQ  INSTRUCTIONS @ ENGLISH v
2020

)\ " )\ 1\
e e e e

Address Household People Questions Final Questions
Verification Questions

Please Log In

Use the materials we mailed to you or left at your door.
All the information that you provide will remain confidential.

Where can | find my 12-digit Census ID?

Please enter the 12-digit Census ID found in the materials we mailed to you or left at
your door.

NN

If you do not have a Census ID, click here.

ENGLISH ~ ESPANOL  FR3Z(f&i{&) TIENGVIET 220 PYCCKMM  4uy=ll  TAGALOG ~ POLSKI  FRANGAIS

KREYOLAYISYEN  PORTUGUES EAZE




Census Form Example (page 1)

Use a blue or black pen.

Before you answer Question 1, count the pegple living in this
house, apartment, or mobile-heme using our guidelines.

« Count all people, including babies; who live and sleep here
most of the time.

« If no one lives ard sieeps at this address most of the time, go
online at {url remaoved] or call the number on page 8.

The ceénsus must zlso include people without a permanent
place te live, so:

 |[f someone who does not have a permanent place to live is
staying here on April 1, 2020, count that person.

The Census Bureau also conducts counts in institutions and
other places, so:

* Do not count anyone living away from here, either at college
or in the Armed Forces.

« Do not count anyone in a nursing home, jail, prison, detention
facility, etc., on April 1, 2020.

« Leave these people off your questionnaire, even if they will
return to live here after they leave college, the nursing home,
the military, jail, etc. Otherwise, they may be counted twice.

1. How many people were living or staying in this house,
apartment, or mobile home on April 1, 2020?

Number of people =

Start here or go online at [url removed] to complete your 2020 Census questionnaire.

2. Were there any additional people staying here on April 1, 2020
that you did not include in Question 1?

Mark | X| all that apply.

Children, related or unrelated, such as newborn babies,
grandchildren, or foster children

Relatives, such as adult children, cousins, or in-laws
Nonrelatives, such as roommates or live-in babysitters
People staying here temporarily

No additional people

3. Is this house, apartment, or mobile home — Mark X ONE box.

Owned by you or someone in this household with a mortgage
or loan? include home equity loans.

Owned by you or someone in this household free and clear
(without a mortgage or loan)?

Rented?
Occupied without payment of rent?

4. What is your telephone number?

We will only contact you if needed for official Census Bureau
business.

Telephone Number

[Form number removed]




Census Form Example (page 2)

5. Please provide information for each person living here. If 9. What is Person 1's race?
there is someone living here who pays the rent or owns this Mark X| one or more boxes AND print origins.
residence, start by listing him or her as Person 1. If the
owner or the person who pays the rent does not live here, White — Print, for example, German, Irish, English, Italian,
start by listing any adult living here as Person 1. Lebanese, Egyptian, ete.

What is Person 1’s name? Print name below.
First Name

Black or African Am. — Print, for example, African American,
Jamaican, Haitian, Nigerian, Ethiopian, Somali, etc. =4

Last Name(s)

American Indian or Alaska Native'— &rint hame of enrolled or
principal tribe(s), for example, Navajo Mation, Blackfeet Tribe,
~ ) Mayan, Aztec, Native Village of Barrow Inupiat Traditional
What is Person 1’s sex? Mark |[X ONE box. Government, Nome EskirnoCommunity, efc.

Male Female

Chi Viet Native H ii
What is Person 1’s age and what is Person 1’s date of ngse letnamese ative Hawaiian

birth? For babies less than 1 year old, do not write the age in Filipino Korean Samoan
months. Write O as the age.

Print numbers in boxes. Japanese Chamorro

Age on April 1, 2020 Month Day Year of birth Other Asian — Other Pacific Islander —
Print, for example, Print, for example,
Pakistani, Cambodian, Tongan, Fijian,

years Hmong, etc. & Marshallese, etc. 3

NOTE: Please answer BOTH Question 8 about Hispanic
origin and Question 9 about race. For-this census, Hispanic Some other race — Print race
origins are not races.

or origin.
8. Is Person 1 of Hispanic, Latino; or Spanish origin?

No, not of Hispanic, Latino, or Spanish origin

Yes, Mexican, Mexican Am:, Chicano

Yes; Puerto, Rican

Yes, Cuban

Yes, another Hispanic, Latino, or Spanish origin — Print, for

example, Salvadoran, Dominican, Colombian, Guatemalan,
Spaniard, Ecuadorian, etc.




Key Dates

2019 Validate all residential units in the country

Early 2020 Advertising Campaign

Mid- March 2020 Online portal opens

1 April 2020 CENSUS DAY!

April-June 2020 Non-response Follow Up
Quality Control

31 Dec 2020 Results delivered to the president

31 Mar 2021 Results delivered to the states




Timeline

"Mid-March
2020

GROUP
Jan-Fe 020 SELF-RESPONSE o -

il

MOTIVATE PEOPLE MNOMRESPOMNSE
TO RESPOMD FOLLOWLIP

2018-2019 31 December 2020

ESTABLISH WHERE TABULATE DATA AND
TO COUNT RELEASE CEMSUS RESULTS




How it will work: Type of Enumeration




Curious about how many people in your
community are responding to the 2020
Census?

Real-time response rates

Helps to determine
outreach

Response Rate Toolkit

Response Rate
Challenges




*People of Color *LGBTQ+

*Tribes *Rural Communities

*Immigrants and *Renters
Refugees

«Children *Homeless Individuals Ha rd -to-Count
Population

and Families

*Multifamily *Non-Native English G rou pS
Households Speakers

*Low Income People *People Distrustful of
Government

*Seniors *People with Physical and
Mental Disabilities




Review

Less than a week to go until invitations are mailed!
Responding to the Census tells officials that you and your family matter.

The Census matters to communities because of the three D’s: Dollars,
Data, and Democracy.

The Census only happens every 10 years — don’t miss this chance to be
shape your community’s future.

Participating helps ensure more funds for schools, roads, healthcare, and
other community benefits.

Share the word and help inform neighbors on the importance of early and
self-response!




yvour fulure
START HERE >

ThankYou!

Sara Bernardy

Email: sara@wcog.org
Phone:970.387.8555




a2 Census 2020

Every 10 years, the U.S. Census counts everyone living in the United States.

Make sure you are counted. It ensures Washington receives its fair share of federal dollars
for vital community programs — public safety, health care, education and transportation —
that affect you and your family.

Be counted. Your community is counting on you.

minutes
fuestions
years

ions that
nts in
0 years.

April 1, 2020| | F T |
ov/2020census AT : =



The 2020 Census
and Confidentiality

Your responses to the 2020 Census are safe, secure, and pro-
tected by federal law. Your answers can only be used to produce
statistics—they cannot be used against you in any way. By law, all
responses to U.S. Census Bureau household and business surveys
are kept completely confidential.

Respond to the 2020 Census to shape the future.

Responding to the census helps communities get the funding they
need and helps businesses make data-driven decisions that grow
the economy. Census data impact our daily lives, informing import-
ant decisions about funding for services and infrastructure in your
community, including health care, senior centers, jobs, political rep-
resentation, roads, schools, and businesses. More than $675 billion
in federal funding flows back to states and local communities each
year based on census data.

i

Your census responses are safe and secure.

The Census Bureau is required by law to protect any personal
information we collect and keep it strictly confidential. The Census
Bureau can only use your answers to produce statistics. In fact,
every Census Bureau employee takes an oath to protect your
personal information for life. Your answers cannot be used for law
enforcement purposes or to determine your personal eligibility for
government benefits.

By law, your responses cannot be used against you.

By law, your census responses cannot be used against you by

any government agency or court in any way—not by the Federal
Bureau of Investigation (FBI), not by the Central Intelligence
Agency (CIA), not by the Department of Homeland Security (DHS),
and not by U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE). The
law requires the Census Bureau to keep your information confiden-
tial and use your responses only to produce statistics.

2020CENSUS.GOV

D-1254

your future
START HERE >

7N
SH

The law is clear—no
personal information
can be shared.

Under Title 13 of the

U.S. Code, the Census
Bureau cannot release
any identifiable informa-
tion about individuals,
households, or businesses,
even to law enforcement
agencies.

The law states that the
information collected may
only be used for statisti-
cal purposes and no other
purpose.

To support historical
research, Title 44 of the
U.S. Code allows the
National Archives and
Records Administration to
release census records only
after 72 years.

All Census Bureau staff
take a lifetime oath to pro-
tect your personal infor-
mation, and any violation
comes with a penalty of up
to $250,000 and/or up to
5 years in prison.

Sha pe CUnited States®

ensus
2020




There are no exceptions.

The law requires the Census Bureau to keep everyone’s informa-
tion confidential. By law, your responses cannot be used against
you by any government agency or court in any way. The Census
Bureau will not share an individual’s responses with immigration
enforcement agencies, law enforcement agencies, or allow that
information to be used to determine eligibility for government
benefits. Title 13 makes it very clear that the data we collect can
only be used for statistical purposes—we cannot allow it to be
used for anything else, including law enforcement.

It’s your choice: you can respond securely online, by
mail, or by phone.

You will have the option of responding online, by mail, or by
phone. Households that don’t respond in one of these ways will
be visited by a census taker to collect the information in person.
Regardless of how you respond, your personal information is
protected by law.

Your online responses are safe from hacking and other
cyberthreats.

The Census Bureau takes strong precautions to keep online
responses secure. All data submitted online are encrypted to
protect personal privacy, and our cybersecurity program meets
the highest and most recent standards for protecting personal
information. Once the data are received, they are no longer online.
From the moment the Census Bureau collects responses, our
focus and legal obligation is to keep them safe.

We are committed to confidentiality.

At the U.S. Census Bureau, we are absolutely committed to keep-
ing your responses confidential. This commitment means it is safe
to provide your answers and know that they will only be used to
paint a statistical portrait of our nation and communities.

Learn more about the Census Bureau’s data protection and pri-
vacy program at www.census.gov/privacy.

Laws protecting
personal census
information have
withstood challenges.

In 1982, the U.S. Supreme
Court confirmed that even
addresses are confidential
and cannot be disclosed
through legal discovery or
the Freedom of Information
Act (FOIA). In 2010, the
U.S. Justice Department
determined that the Patriot
Act does not override

the law that protects the
confidentiality of individual
census responses. No court
of law can subpoena census
responses.

Shape
your future
START HERE >

CUnited States®

ensus
2020

2020CENSUS.GOV




El Censo del 2020 vy
la Confidencialidad

Sus respuestas al Censo del 2020 estan seguras, a salvo y
protegidas por la ley federal. Sus respuestas se pueden usar
solamente para producir estadisticas—no se pueden usar en
su contra de ninguna manera. Por ley, todas las respuestas

a las encuestas sobre hogares y empresas que realiza la
Oficina del Censo de los EE. UU. se mantienen completamente
confidenciales.

Responda al Censo del 2020 para dar forma al futuro.

Responder al censo ayuda a las comunidades a obtener los fondos
gue necesitan y ayuda a las empresas a tomar decisiones basadas en
datos que hacen crecer a la economia. Los datos del censo influyen
en nuestra vida diaria, aportando informacién para tomar decisiones
importantes sobre el financiamiento de servicios e infraestructura en
su comunidad, incluyendo atencion médica, centros para personas de
la tercera edad, empleos, representacidn politica, carreteras, escuelas
y negocios. Mas de $675 mil millones de fondos federales se dis-
tribuyen a los estados y a las comunidades locales basandose en los
datos del censo.

o
=

i

4
o
4

Sus respuestas al censo estan seguras y a salvo.

La Oficina del Censo esta obligada por ley a proteger toda la infor-
macidn personal que se recopile y a mantenerla en estricta confiden-
cialidad. La Oficina del Censo puede usar sus respuestas solo para
producir estadisticas. De hecho, cada uno de los empleados de la
Oficina del Censo presta un juramento para proteger su informacion
personal de por vida. Sus respuestas no se pueden usar para fines
del cumplimiento de la ley o para determinar su elegibilidad personal
para beneficios del gobierno.

Por ley, sus respuestas no pueden ser usadas en su
contra.

Por ley, sus respuestas al censo no pueden ser usadas en su contra
de ninguna manera por ninguna agencia del gobierno ni tribunal—ni
por el Burd Federal de Investigaciones (FBI), ni por la Agencia Central

CUnited States®

ensus
2020

//-—\\

A
H

La ley es clara: no

se puede compartir
ninguna informacion
personal.

En conformidad con el

Titulo 13 del Codigo de los
EE. UU,, la Oficina del Censo
no puede divulgar ninguna
informacion identificable
sobre individuos, hogares o
empresas, ni siquiera a agen-
cias encargadas de hacer
cumplir la ley.

La ley estipula que la infor-
macion que se recopile

se puede usar solo para
propodsitos estadisticos y
para ningun otro fin.

Con el fin de apoyar los
estudios historicos, el Titulo
44 del Cédigo de los EE. UU.
permite a la Administracion
Nacional de Archivos y
Registros publicar los regis-
tros del censo solo después
de 72 anos.

Todo el personal de la
Oficina del Censo presta un
juramento de por vida para
proteger su informacion per-
sonal, y cualquier violacion
es sancionada con una multa
de hasta $250,000 y/o hasta
cinco anos de prision.

D-1254



de Inteligencia (CIA), ni por el Departamento de Seguridad Nacional
(DHS), ni por el Servicio de Inmigracion y Control de Aduanas de
los EE. UU. (ICE). La ley exige a la Oficina del Censo mantener con-
fidencial su informacién y usar sus respuestas solo para producir
estadisticas.

No hay excepciones.

La ley exige a la Oficina del Censo mantener confidencial la infor-
macidn de todas las personas. Por ley, sus respuestas no pueden
ser usadas en su contra de ninguna manera por ninguna agencia del
gobierno o tribunal. La Oficina del Censo no compartira las respues-
tas de ninguna persona con las agencias de inmigracion o las agen-
cias encargadas de hacer cumplir la ley, ni permitird que esa infor-
macioén se use para determinar la elegibilidad para beneficios del
gobierno. El Titulo 13 deja muy claro que la informacién que recop-
ilemos se puede usar solo para propodsitos estadisticos—no podemos
permitir que se use para nada mas, incluyendo el cumplimiento de
la ley.

La opcidn es suya: usted puede responder de manera
segura por internet, por teléfono o por correo.

Usted tendra la opcidn de responder por internet, por correo o por
teléfono. Un censista visitara los hogares que no respondan de una
de estas maneras para recopilar la informacion en persona. La ley
protege su informacion personal, sin importar cémo responda.

Sus respuestas por internet estan a salvo de la pirateria
informatica (hacking) y otras amenazas cibernéticas.

La Oficina del Censo toma rigurosas precauciones para mantener
seguras las respuestas por internet. Todos los datos que se envian por
internet son cifrados para proteger la privacidad personal, y nuestro
programa de seguridad cibernética cumple con los estdndares mas
exigentes y recientes para proteger la informacidén personal. Una

vez que se reciben los datos, ya no permanecen en linea. Desde el
momento en que la Oficina del Censo recopila las respuestas, nuestro
objetivo y obligacién legal es mantenerlas seguras.

Estamos comprometidos a mantener la confidencialidad.

En la Oficina del Censo de los EE. UU., estamos absolutamente com-
prometidos a mantener confidenciales sus respuestas. Este compro-
miso significa que es seguro responder al censo sabiendo que sus
respuestas solo se usaran para pintar un retrato estadistico de nues-
tra nacién y sus comunidades.

Averigle mas sobre el programa de proteccion de datos y privacidad
de la Oficina del Censo en www.census.gov/privacy.

CUnited States®

ensus
2020

Las leyes que protegen
la informacioén personal
del censo han resistido
los desafios.

En 1982, la Corte Suprema
de los EE. UU. confirmo
gue aun las direcciones
son confidenciales y no se
pueden divulgar mediante
procesos de descubrimiento
legal o la Ley de

Libertad de Informacion
(FOIA). En el 2010, el
Departamento de Justicia
de los EE. UU. determind
que la Ley Patriota no
tiene precedencia sobre

la ley que protege la
confidencialidad de las
respuestas individuales del
censo. Ningun tribunal de
justicia puede emitir una
citacion judicial que ordene
la presentacion de las
respuestas del censo.

Conéctese con nosotros
@uscensusbureau



Make @ Where you

difference are counted
inyour can shape
community. your future.
Every 10 years, everyone

living in the United States gets I_eCI rn m Ore C”-
counted in the census—once 2020CENSUS.GOV.

and in the right place.

Your response helps make
sure that more than $675
billion in federal funds is
directed each year to the right
places to support education,
health care, firefighting
services, and more. Many
decisions about where to

send this money are based on a re C o U nllled

census data. A complete and

accurate count is also critical m Clﬂ'e I'S .

for determining how many . .
representatives each state will A guide for different

have in Congress. Iiving situations

Shape CUnited States®
your future ensus Shape United States®
starthere> | 2020 your future Census

D-BR-RE-EN-042 START HERE > 020




Count yourself in
the right place.

In general, you should
count yourself where you
live and sleep most of the
time. But pay special
attention if you are:

Completing Your
Household’s Form

When responding, count
any children, including
newborns, who usually live
and sleep at your home--
even if they’re not your own.
If they split time evenly
between two households,
count them where they are
on April 1, 2020.”

A Recent Mover

Count yourself at your
new address if you moved
in by April 1, 2020.

N |
11
.

238

=

A Renter

Count yourself where
you live. Even though you
don’t own the home, you
need to participate. Don’t
forget your family and
roommates.

A College Student

If you don’t live in a dorm,
count yourself at your off-
campus address—even if you
go to your parents’ home for
school breaks. This includes
international students.

A Service Member

If you don’t live in military
barracks—and you aren’t
deployed or stationed
outside the United States—
count yourself where you
live and sleep most of the
time, whether on or off base.

A Resident of —

a Group Facility

For people in the following
living situations on April

1, 2020, Census Bureau
employees will work with

a representative from your
building to ensure you are
counted. They may or may
not ask you to complete an
individual census form.

> College dorms
Military barracks
Nursing homes
Group homes
Shelters
Psychiatric facilities

Correctional facilities

For more details, visit

2020CENSUS.GOV.




Shape our children’s future.
Start with the 2020 Census.

Young children experience new adventures each day, and little ones need all of the
support they can get during these early years.

Responding to the 2020 Census is an easy, safe, and important way to help
provide resources for children and their communities for the next 10 years.

Everyone living in the United States is asked to complete a simple questionnaire every
ten years that asks for basic information about the people who live or sleep in their
home. Children under the age of five, however, are often missed.

Young children who are missed in the census tend to live with large, extended families
or with multiple families living under one roof. When newborn babies and children are
not counted, support for programs such as health insurance, hospitals, childcare, food
assistance, schools, and early childhood development is impacted.

Responding to the census is easier than ever. You can complete the census
questionnaire online, by phone, or by mail.

And remember, just as you protect the children in your care, the U.S. Census Bureau
protects your information. The Census Bureau is required by law to protect any
personal information collected and keep it strictly confidential. All Census Bureau staff
take a lifetime oath to protect your personal information and any violation of this oath
comes with a penalty of up to $250,000 and/or up to five years in prison.

h . heir f Shape United States®
Sta_rt shaping their future by your future Census
going to 2020CENSUS.GOV. START HERE > 2020




If you have children in your home, make sure
they are counted in the right place.

Young children experience new adventures each day, and little ones need all of the
support they can get during these early years.

Count children in the home where they live and sleep most of the time, even if
their parents don’t live there.

If a child’s time is divided between more than one home, count them where they
stay most often. If their time is evenly divided, or you don’t know where they stay
most often, count them where they are staying on Census Day—April 1, 2020.

If a child’s family (or guardian) is moving during March or April 2020, count them
at the address where they are living on April 1, 2020.

Count children in your home if they don’t have a permanent place to live and
are staying in your home on April 1, 2020, even if they are only staying with you
temporarily.

Count newborn babies at the home where they will live and sleep most of the
time, even if they are still in the hospital on April 1, 2020.

Start shaping their future by Shape

CUnited States®

. your future ensus
going to 2020CENSUS.GOV. START HERE > 2020




44

Everyone counts

COUNTS The 2020 Census is just around the corner. Washington is
‘ nonNn getting organized to ensure that every resident of the state
2020 is counted — once and in the place where they usually reside.

The U.S. Constitution mandates a complete population count every 10 years to apportion seats in the
House of Representatives. The state uses it to draw boundaries for every level of government down to the
school districts. An accurate census ensures fair and equal representation at all levels.

Federal, state, and local governments rely on census data for planning and delivering education, economic
development and employment, transportation and health services. In 2015, Washington received $13.7
billion in federal funds, which amounted to about $1,914 per person.’ In addition, the private and
nonprofit sectors use census data in their planning and decision-making processes.

Highway planning & construction $664 million
Education — Title 1 grants, special education, Head Start, school nutrition ~ $815 million
Health insurance — Medicare, S-CHIP, Medicaid $9.7 billion
Supplemental Nutrition, including WIC (Women, Infants, Children) $1.7 billion
Rural assistance programs $555 million
Section 8 and other housing assistance $630 million

The census process is safe, quick and very important to the future of our state and its communities.

e Important: By taking a few minutes to complete the census, you can help protect Washington's
voice in Congress, bring tax dollars to our communities and invest in better planning and services
for your neighborhood.

e Easy: You can use the internet — via your home computer or on a mobile device — to submit
your answers.

e Safe: Your personal data is confidential. Title 13 prohibits the Census Bureau and its employees
from sharing personal responses with any other government agency or official or outside entity.

The census is a once-in-a-decade snapshot of who we are. You are an important part of that picture. You
count in your neighborhood, county and state ... Don't be left out.

Learn more about what you can do at www.ofm.wa.gov/2020census.

1 Source: The George Washington Institute of Public Policy, Counting for Dollars 2020 (using fiscal year 2015 data)
and Census-Guided Financial Assistance to Rural America (using fiscal year 2016 data).

— 2020 CENSUS

Sl less than
7.4+ million 2 years to build 1 chance
million people households awareness & trust to succeed



Counting for Dollars 2020
The Role of the Decennial Census in the
Geographic Distribution of Federal Funds

WASHINGTON

In FY2016, Washington received

$16,676,186,274

through 55 federal spending programs
guided by data derived from the 2010 Census.

REPORT

The Counting for Dollars 2020 Project aims to understand 1) the extent to which the federal government
will rely on data from the 2020 Census to guide the distribution of federal funding to states, localities, and
households across the nation and 2) the impact of the accuracy of the 2020 Census on the fair, equitable

distribution of these funds.

The project has analyzed spending by state for 55 federal programs
($883,094,826,042 in FY2016). Three types of programs are analyzed:

e Domestic financial assistance programs provide financial assistance — including direct
payments to individuals, grants, loans, and loan guarantees — to non-federal entities within
the U.S. — such as individuals and families, state and local governments, companies, and
nonprofits — in order to fulfill a public purpose.

o Tax credit programs allow a special exclusion, exemption, or deduction from gross income or
provide a special credit, a preferential rate of tax, or a deferral of tax liability.

® Procurement programs award a portion of Federal prime contract dollars to small businesses
located in areas selected on the basis of census-derived data.

The four uses of census-derived datasets to geographically allocate
funding are:

e Define eligibility criteria — that is, identify which organizations or individuals can receive funds.

e Compute formulas that geographically allocate funds to eligible recipients.
e Rank project applications based on priorities (e.g., smaller towns, poorer neighborhoods).

e Set interest rates for federal loan programs.

The two categories of census-derived datasets are:

e Geographic classifications — the characterization (e.g., rural), delineation (e.g., Metropolitan
Areas), or designation (e.g., Opportunity Zones) of specific geographic areas.

® Variable datasets
o Annual updates of population and housing variables collected in the Decennial Census.

o Household surveys collecting new data elements (e.g., income, occupation) by using the
Decennial Census to design representative samples and interpret results.

GW Institute
of Public Policy

THE GEORGE WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY

Initial Analysis: 16 Large
Census-guided Financial Assistance
Programs (August 2017)*

Estimating Fiscal Costs
of a Census Undercount to States
(March 2018)*

Role of the Decennial
Census in Distributing Federal Funds
to Rural America (December 2018)*

Census-derived Datasets
Used to Distribute Federal Funds
(December 2018)

Analysis of 55 Large
Census-guided Federal Spending
Programs (forthcoming)*

An Inventory of 320
Census-guided Federal Spending
Programs (forthcoming)

* Data available by state

For further information:
Andrew Reamer, Research Professor

The George Washington University
areamer@gwu.edu

IPP-1819-3



Counting for Dollars 2020

The Role of the Decennial Census in the
Geographic Distribution of Federal Funds REPORT

COUNTING FOR DOLLARS 2020:

WASHINGTON

Allocation of Funds from 55 Large Federal Spending Programs
Guided by Data Derived from the 2010 Census (Fiscal Year 2016)

Total Program Obligations: $16,676,186,274

Program Dept. Obligations Program Dept. Obligations

Financial Assistance Programs $16,345,272,960

Medical Assistance Program (Medicaid) HHS $7,062,048,000 Community Facilities Loans/Grants USDA $38,033,528
Federal Direct Student Loans ED $1,336,191,946  Supporting Effective Instruction State Grants ED $36,823,489
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program USDA $1,452,893,518  Crime Victim Assistance DOJ $48,821,061
Medicare Suppl. Medical Insurance (Part B) HHS $1,125,500,538 CDBG Entitlement Grants HUD $40,136,072
Highway Planning and Construction DOT $682,958,983  Public Housing Capital Fund HUD $25,002,000
Federal Pell Grant Program ED $399,700,000 Ei"scukbf{::ézf:l;ii Prevention and Treatment HHS $37,784,663
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers HUD $509,706,000 ter and Waste Disposal Systems for USDA $15,081,100
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families HHS $450,396,098  Social Services Block Grant HHS $34,892,677
Very Low to Moderate Income Housing Loans USDA $446,692,303  Rural Rental Assistance Payments USDA $35,857,764
Title | Grants to LEAs ED $242,701,346  Business and Industry Loans USDA $20,180,000
State Children's Health Insurance Program HHS $215,289,000 :;agfaet;asnd Technical Education - Basic Grants ED $20,522,876
National School Lunch Program USDA $201,584,000 Homeland Security Grant Program DHS $13,015,974
Special Education Grants ED $230,436,683 WIOA Dislocated Worker Grants DOL $20,083,489
Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments Program HUD $94,646,688 HOME HUD $18,607,152
Federal Transit Formula Grants DOT $264,325,000 State CDBG HUD $11,319,386
Head Start HHS $185,682,699  WIOA Youth Activities DOL $19,035,891
WIC USDA $149,191,000 WIOA Adult Activities DOL $16,336,037
Title IV-E Foster Care HHS $86,876,649  Employment Service/Wagner-Peyser DOL $14,981,703
Health Care Centers HHS $125,908,671  Community Services Block Grant HHS $8,957,923
School Breakfast Program USDA $55,763,000 ~Pecial Programs forthe Aging, Title Il Part C, HHS $13,844,851
Rural Electrification Loans and Loan Guarantees USDA $30,782,000 Cooperative Extension Service USDA $6,812,636
Public and Indian Housing HUD $45,835,000 Native Amer. Employment & Training DOL $1,863,823
Low Income Home Energy Assistance HHS $58,728,879

Child and Adult Care Food Program USDA $47,468,000 Federal Tax Expenditures $288,882,613
Vocational Rehabilitation Grants to the States ED $55,616,244  Low Income Housing Tax Credit Treas $192,277,754
Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds HHS $78,400,000 New Markets Tax Credit Treas $96,604,859
Unemployment Insurance Administration DOL $92,408,000

Federal Transit - Capital Investment Grants DOT $31,610,379  Federal Procurement Programs $42,030,701
Child Care and Development Block Grant HHS $48,074,000 HUBZones Program SBA $42,030,701
Adoption Assistance HHS $39,864,241

Prepared by Andrew Reamer, the George Washington Institute of Public Policy, the George Washington University. Spending data analysis provided by Sean Moulton, Open Government
Program Manager, Project on Government Oversight. | January 30,2019

Note: The sequence of the above programs is consistent with U.S. rank order by program expenditures. (See U.S. sheet in series.)

[Z Counting for Dollars 2020 publications and spreadsheet with above data available at
https://gwipp.gwu.edu/counting-dollars-2020-role-decennial-census-geographic-distribution-federal-funds

GW InSt]tute —————— For further information:
of Public Policy Andrew Reamer, Research Professor

The George Washington University
THE GEORGE WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY areamer@awu.edu

IPP-1819-3



Why We Ask

The 2020 Census is easy. The questions are simple.

The census asks questions that provide a snap-

shot of the nation. Census results affect your
voice in government, how much funding your

community receives, and how your community

plans for the future.

When you fill out the census, you help:

= Determine how many seats your state gets in

Congress.

Guide how more than $675 billion in federal
funding is distributed to states and commu-
nities each year.

Create jobs, provide housing, prepare for
emergencies, and build schools, roads and
hospitals.

POPULATION COUNT (NUMBER OF
PEOPLE LIVING OR STAYING)

We ask this question to collect an accurate

count of the number of people at each address

on Census Day, April 1, 2020. Each decade,
census results determine how many seats your
state gets in Congress. State and local officials
use census counts to draw boundaries for dis-
tricts like congressional districts, state legisla-
tive districts, and school districts.

ANY ADDITIONAL PEOPLE LIVING
OR STAYING

Our goal is to count people once, only once,
and in the right place according to where they
live on Census Day. Keeping this goal in mind,
we ask this question to ensure that everyone
living at an address is counted.

OWNER/RENTER

We ask about whether a home is owned
or rented to create statistics about

Revised July 2019

Connect with us
@uscensusbureau

2020CENSUS.GOV

homeownership and renters. Homeownership
rates serve as an indicator of the nation’s econ-
omy and help in administering housing pro-
grams and informing planning decisions.

PHONE NUMBER

We ask for a phone number in case we need to
contact you. We will never share your number
and will only contact you if needed for official
Census Bureau business.

Shape
your future
START HERE >

CUnited States®

ensus
2020




Why We Ask

The 2020 Census is easy. The questions are simple.

NAME

We ask for names to ensure everyone in the
house is counted. Listing the name of each
person in the household helps respondents
include all members, particularly in large house-
holds where a respondent may forget who was
counted and who was not.

SEX

We ask about the sex of each person to cre-

ate statistics about males and females. Census
data about sex are used in planning and fund-
ing government programs, and in evaluating
other government programs and policies to
ensure they fairly and equitably serve the needs
of males and females. These statistics are also
used to enforce laws, regulations, and policies
against discrimination in government programs
and in society.

AGE AND DATE OF BIRTH

We ask about age and date of birth to under-
stand the size and characteristics of different
age groups and to present other data by age.
Local, state, tribal, and federal agencies use age
data to plan and fund government programs
that provide assistance or services for specific
age groups, such as children, working-age
adults, women of childbearing age, or the older
population. These statistics also help enforce
laws, regulations, and policies against age
discrimination in government programs and in
society.

HISPANIC, LATINO, OR SPANISH
ORIGIN

We ask about whether a person is of Hispanic,
Latino, or Spanish origin to create statistics

Connect with us
@uscensusbureau

2020CENSUS.GOV

about this ethnic group. The data collected in
this question are needed by federal agencies
to monitor compliance with antidiscrimination
provisions, such as under the Voting Rights Act
and the Civil Rights Act.

RACE

We ask about a person’s race to create statistics
about race and to present other statistics by
race groups. The data collected in this question
are needed by federal agencies to monitor com-
pliance with antidiscrimination provisions, such
as under the Voting Rights Act and the Civil
Rights Act. State governments use the data to
determine congressional, state, and local voting
districts.

WHETHER A PERSON LIVES OR STAYS
SOMEWHERE ELSE

Our goal is to count people once, only once,
and in the right place according to where they
live on Census Day. Keeping this goal in mind,
we ask this question to ensure individuals are
not included at multiple addresses.

RELATIONSHIP

We ask about the relationship of each person

in a household to one central person to create
estimates about families, households, and other
groups. Relationship data are used in planning
and funding government programs that provide
funds or services for families, people living or
raising children alone, grandparents living with
grandchildren, or other households that qualify
for additional assistance.

Sha pe CUnited States®

your future

ensus
START HERE > 2020




CITY OF LYNDEN

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Meeting Date: 3/16/2020 Legal Review:
Department: Public Works O Yes - Reviewed

Contact Name/Phone: | Steve Banham / 360-255-5512 [J'No - Not Reviewed

Council Committee Review: I Review Not Required

L Community Development L] Public Safety

O Finance Public Works
] Parks ] Other:
Attachments:

Interlocal Agreement with City of Bellingham

Name of Agenda ltem:

Interlocal Agreement with City of Bellingham for Vactor Waste Facility Use

Summary Statement:

Staff would like to renew this Interlocal Agreement with the City of Bellingham (COB) for vactor waste disposal.
The COB accepts street sweepings and vactor waste materials and disposes of them in compliance with
Department of Ecology (DOE) and Department of Health rules and regulations. Public Works used this disposal
as an alternative to disposal at RDS which is currently less expensive.

This would be a fourth term renewal through December 31, 2020 at the same price of $147.56 per ton. All other
terms remain the same.

The Public Works Committee reviewed this agreement at their March 4 meeting and concurred to recommend
approval to City Council. The also concurred with the next annual renewal being signed by the Mayor provided
there is no change in price or other significant terms of the agreement

Recommended Action:

Approve the 2020 renewal to Interlocal Agreement with the City of Bellingham for Vactor Waste Facility Use
and Authorize the Mayor’s signature. Also authorize the Mayor to renew the 2021 renewal if there are no
changes to the price or other major terms of the agreement.




50

MEMORANDUM FOR ANNUAL RENEWAL
City of Bellingham Interlocal Agreement #2016-0221
City of Bellingham — City of Lynden
Vactor Waste Facility Use - January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020

WHEREAS, the City of Bellingham and the City of Lynden are parties to that certain City of
Bellingham Interlocal Agreement #2016-0221, effective January 1, 2016, for vactor waste facility use; and

WHEREAS, the Interlocal Agreement included an initial one-year term, expiring December 31, 2016,
plus five one-year renewal options exercisable upon written agreement of both parties; and

WHEREAS, both parties desire to exercise the fourth renewal option, with the fourth renewal period
commencing on January 1, 2020 and terminating on December 31, 2020.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereby agree as follows:

The parties hereby exercise the fourth one (1) year renewal option. This fourth renewal term shall commence
on January 1, 2020 and terminate on December 31, 2020 ("Fourth Renewal Term"). Cost of Service will be
$147.56/ton during the Fourth Renewal Term. See Exhibit “A” attached and incorporated herein. All other
terms and conditions, shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect.

CITY OF LYNDEN
Dated this day of , 2020.
Department Approval:
Scott Korthuis, Mayor Public Works Director
Approved as to Form:
Office of the City Attorney
CITY OF BELLINGHAM
Dated this day of , 2020.
Department Approval:
Seth Fleetwood, Mayor Public Works Director
Attest: Approved as to Form:
Finance Director Office of the City Attorney
Interlocal Agreement City of Bellingham

Vactor Waste Facility Use Page 1



EXHIBIT A

51

2020 Vactor Waste Facility Use Permit

In consideration for the use of the City of Bellingham’s (“City”) Vactor Waste Facility (“Facility”),
City of Lynden, located at 300 4" Street, Lynden, Washington, (hereinafter the “User”), covenants and
agrees to comply with the following terms and conditions of this Use Permit (‘“Permit”):

User’s:
Contact Person:

Phone Number:

Email Address:

Section 1 — Purpose

The purpose of this Permit is to allow non-public, private sector use of the Facility. As further
described herein, User’s ability to use the Facility requires full compliance with this Permit’s terms and
conditions, including but not limited to:

Dumping only “ACCEPTABLE WASTE” (Section 2 — ACCEPTABLE WASTE)
Dumping in an appropriate manner (Section 3 — DUMPING OPERATION)
Obtaining Training (Section 4 — REQUIRED TRAINING)

Complying with Safety Rules and Regulations (Section 5 — SAFETY)

Payment (Section 6 — COST OF SERVICE)

Such other terms and conditions as contained herein.

Section 2 — Acceptable Waste

2.1 User shall be solely responsible to insure that only Acceptable Waste is deposited at the facility.
For purposes of this Permit “Acceptable Waste” is defined herein as:

e Street sweepings are wastes collected by utilizing a street sweeper to collect grit, dirt, vegetative
waste and litter from roadway surfaces.

e Vactor wastes includes, grit, dirt and vegetative waste collected by an eductor truck during the
cleaning of storm water catch basins.

2.2 Any materials that are odorous or are from a chemical spill are specifically not considered
Acceptable Waste products and shall not be deposited at the Facility.

2.3 In the event unacceptable waste or materials are dumped at the Facility, the responsible party
shall pay all costs associated with the proper removal and deposition of the contaminated
materials. Removal and deposing of unacceptable waste or materials shall be in accordance
with the approved practices and regulations of the State of Washington, including but not
limited to the Washington State Department of Ecology, and the Whatcom County Health
Department.

Interlocal Agreement City of Bellingham
Vactor Waste Facility Use Page 2




EXHIBIT A

52

2.4  The City reserves the right to find any waste or material unacceptable in its sole discretion.
Disposing of unacceptable materials may result in the loss of the privilege to use the Facility.

Section 3 — Dumping Operation

3.1 The Facility has a limited capacity to accept Acceptable Waste products and User acknowledges
that the City, State of Washington and Whatcom County, as public users, have preference over
non-public, private users. In the event that the Facility capacity should become an issue, non-
public, private users will be directed to cease usage of the site. The City shall have no
obligation or duty to provide advance warning of this circumstance or to provide alternate
dumping facilities. This contract is in no way a guarantee of service. The City of Bellingham
may at any time and for any reason cease to offer this service to any and all users.

3.2 When depositing Acceptable Waste at the Facility, User agrees to follow the following
“dumping operation’:

3.2.1  Eductor vehicles shall back into the Facility to decant excess water into the settling
trough;

3.2.2  After excess water is removed, the truck shall be weighed to obtain the net weight of the
material. A copy of the weight slip shall be placed in the drop box of every load dumped
at the facility. Weight slips shall clearly identify: gross weight, tare weight, and billable
weight.  Weight slips will be checked against the gate entry log. If there is no slip, the
customer will be charged for a full load based upon the capacity of the vehicle. Users are
not to use the site other than to dump. Gate access shall be monitored for billing
purposes. If a user accesses the facility and there is no weight slip present for that access
the user will be billed for a full load of the vehicle assigned to that access card; AND

3.2.3  After weighing the remaining portion of the load, it shall be dumped, as far back in the
facility as is practical to limit the amount of material that may spew out into the parking
lot.

33 In addition to any other remedies that may be available to the City, the City may terminate this
Permit and bar User from any future use of the Facility for failure to follow the procedures
outlined in Section 3.2.

Section 4 — Required Training

In order to insure the proper and safe use of the Facility, training is required prior to use of the Facility.
Training consists of a walkthrough of the Facility with a representative of the City to explain how the
Facility operates and what is expected from those who use the Facility. The City shall issue a letter of
fulfillment (“Letter”) that documents that the User has completed the training requirement. User shall
not be allowed to use the Facility until completing this training and receiving the Letter. Further, User
shall not allow any of its employees or agents to use the Facility without receiving the training and
Letter required hereunder.

Interlocal Agreement City of Bellingham
Vactor Waste Facility Use Page 3



EXHIBIT A

53

Section 5 — Safety

All personal injury, including first aid incidents, or damage to vehicles or buildings must be reported
immediately to the Safety Specialist at Bellingham Public Works (360-778-7700). Users shall follow
all Washington State safety policies and regulations while inside the Facility. It is encouraged that a
ground guide be used whenever operating a vehicle inside the Facility. The City shall not be
responsible in any manner for User’s use of the Facility, except to the extent of the City’s sole
negligence.

Section 6- Cost for Service

The cost of depositing one ton of Acceptable Wastes is $147.56 for 2020. This amount is subject to
change at the end of the term of the Permit. The User will be billed monthly and User agrees to pay the
bill in full within 30 calendar days of the date of the bill. Late payments will be charged a late fee of
$25 and returned checks are subject to a $20 fee. In addition to any other remedies that may be
available, User’s failure to pay the bill after 60 calendar days shall automatically terminate this Permit
and cause User to forfeit the privilege to use the Facility.

Interlocal Agreement City of Bellingham
Vactor Waste Facility Use Page 4




CITY OF LYNDEN

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Meeting Date: March 16, 2020

Name of Agenda Item: | Professional Service Agreement — BOSTEC, Inc.

Section of Agenda: Consent

Department: Administration

Council Committee Review: Legal Review:

[J Community Development [ Public Safety Yes - Reviewed
Finance ] Public Works ] No - Not Reviewed
[ Parks ] Other: ] Review Not Required
Attachments:

BOSTEC, Inc. — Professional Services Agreement

Summary Statement:

Professional Service Agreement - The attached agreement is for provision of Drug and Alcohol Testing
Services and Reasonable Suspicion Training for managers by BOSTEC, Inc., and the agreement by the City of
Lynden for payment of said services.

Recommended Action:

Council consideration and approval for Mayor to sign the BOSTEC, Inc. — Professional Services Agreement.




55

CITY OF LYNDEN - BOSTEC, INC.

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made on , 2020, between CITY OF LYNDEN ("City"), a
Washington municipal corporation and BOSTEC, INC. ("Consultant”). City and Consultant may be
referred to herein individually as “Party” or collectively as “Parties.”

In consideration of the mutual benefit derived by the Parties and other good and valuable consideration,
the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree and covenant as follows:

1. PROJECT
Consultant shall perform all services and furnish all labor, tools, materials, and equipment for the
City’s Drug and Alcohol Testing Services in Whatcom County, Washington, and for Reasonable
Suspicion Training for Managers ("Services") in accordance with and as more fully described in
Attachment A — Scope of Work. No additional services shall be performed or deemed authorized
without the written prior authorization from the City.

2. COST OF SERVICES

The City shall pay Consultant for actual services rendered per Attachment B - Rates and Charges.
("Cost of Services™). The Rates and Charges include all costs associated with the Services, including,
but not limited to labor, materials, overhead, administrative, and permit and regulatory costs, unless
otherwise agreed to by the Parties in writing. Prior written approval from the City is required for any
services not included in the Scope of Work (Attachment A). Consultant shall have no right or claim
for payment for services provided which are not included in the Scope of Work (Attachment A) even
if said services were performed in good faith. Any services performed in violation of this paragraph
shall be at the sole cost and expense of Consultant.

3. AGREEMENT TERM/PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE
Consultant shall commence work under this Agreement upon receipt of notice to proceed from the
City. This Agreement shall expire two (2) years after the date of mutual execution unless extended by
the Parties or terminated earlier by the City pursuant to Section 11 herein.

4. PAYMENT TERMS
The Project Cost shall be payable in the following manner: On or before the _ day of each month
in which services have been rendered, Consultant shall submit a detailed monthly invoice for all
services provided describing in reasonable and understandable detail the services invoiced, the
progress of the Scope of Work, and the requested payment amount. The City shall issue a warrant for
payment of approved services contained in the invoice within thirty (30) days after approval.

5. CHANGE IN THE SCOPE OF WORK
Change in the Scope of Work, Project Cost, or Term shall require execution of a written amendment
signed by the Consultant and City. The City may at any time order additions, deletions, revisions, or
other written changes in the Scope of Work. The Consultant will prepare and submit a proposal to the
City for consideration that details changes to the Scope of Work, Project Cost or Term, at the request
of the City.

Form Revision Professional Services Agreement
Page 1 of 9



56

6. STANDARD OF CARE

The Consultant shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical adequacy and accuracy,
timely completion and coordination of all tests, reports and other services prepared or performed
pursuant to this Agreement. The Consultant shall perform its work to conform to generally accepted
professional standards applicable to the types of services and work provided hereunder. The
Consultant shall be responsible for the professional standards, performance and actions of all persons
and firms performing work pursuant to this Agreement. The Consultant shall, without additional
compensation, correct or revise any errors, omissions or specific breaches of a contractual obligation
in such tests, reports and other services. The City’s approval of tests, reports, plans, drawings and
specifications shall not relieve Consultant of responsibility for the adequacy or accuracy thereof.
Consultant shall remain liable for damages and costs incurred by the City arising from Consultant’s
errors, omissions or negligent performance of services furnished under this Agreement.

7. INDEMNIFICATION

Consultant and subcontractors of Consultant agree to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City,
its commissioners, officers, managers, employees, engineers, agents, and volunteers from and against
any and all demands, claims, losses, injuries, damages, liabilities, suits, judgments, reasonable
attorneys' fees and costs, and other expenses of any kind on account of, relating to, or arising out of
Consultant’s performance of the Scope of Work under this Agreement, except to the extent such
injuries or damages are caused by the negligence of the City. For the purposes of this indemnification,
Consultant specifically and expressly waives any immunity granted under the Washington Industrial
Insurance Act, Title 51 RCW. This waiver has been mutually negotiated and agreed to by the Parties.
If a court of competent jurisdiction determines that this agreement is subject to RCW 4.24.115,
Consultant's obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City, its officers, employees,
agents and volunteers shall be limited to the extent of the City's negligence. Consultant shall include
this indemnification obligation for the benefit of the City as a subcontractor requirement in any
subcontractor agreement which includes performance of services under this Agreement; provided that,
Consultant shall remain wholly responsible to the City for performance of the indemnification
obligation set forth herein. The provisions of this paragraph shall survive the expiration or termination
of this Agreement.

8. INSURANCE
Consultant shall obtain, and keep in force during the term of this Contract, insurance policies as
follows:

a. Commercial General Liability. Limits no less than $1,000,000.00 combined single limit
per occurrence and $2,000,000.00 aggregate for personal injury, bodily injury and property
damage. Coverage shall be as broad as Insurance Services Office form number (CG 00
01) covering Commercial General Liability.

b. Automobile Liability Insurance. Limits no less than $1,000,000.00 combined single limit
per accident for bodily injury and property damage. Coverage shall be as broad as
Insurance Services Office form number (CA 00 01) covering Business Auto Coverage,
symbol 1 "any auto"; or the combination of symbols 2, 8, and 9.

c. Workers’ Compensation. Coverage shall be at least as broad as Workers’ Compensation
coverage, as required by the Industrial Insurance Act of the State of Washington, as well
as any similar coverage required for this work by applicable Federal Law.

Form Revision Professional Services Agreement
Page 2 of 9



57

d. Professional Liability. Professional Liability coverage may be required at the option

the City, in an amount of not less than $1,000,000 per claim and in the aggregate. Insurance
shall have a retroactive date before the commencement of the Term and coverage shall
remain in effect for the Term of this Agreement plus three (3) years.

e. The insurance policies shall specifically name the City, its elected or appointed officials,
officers, employees, and volunteers as insureds with regard to damages and defense of
claims arising from (1) activities performed by or on behalf of the Consultant; or (2)
products and completed operations of the Consultant; or (3) premises owned, leased, or
used by the Consultant.

f. The insurance policies (1) shall state that coverage shall apply separately to each insured
against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the
insurer's liability; (2) shall be primary insurance with regard to the City; and (3) shall state
that the City will be given at least 45 days' prior written notice of any cancellation,
suspension or material change in coverage.

g. Before commencing work and services, Consultant shall provide to the City a Certificate
of Insurance evidencing the required insurance accompanied by endorsements as are
necessary to comply with the requirements of this section. The City reserves the right to
request and receive a certified copy of all required insurance policies.

h. Any payment of deductible or self-insured retention shall be the sole responsibility of
Consultant.

9. COMPLIANCE WITH CODES AND REGULATIONS
Consultant is expected to comply with all applicable statutes in performing the Scope of Work,
including, but not limited to all state and local laws, regulations, codes and standards that are
applicable at the time Consultant performs the services.

10. PERMITS, TAXES, TEMPORARY FUNCTIONS
Consultant shall secure and pay for all permits, fees and licenses necessary for the performance of this
Agreement. Consultant shall pay any and all federal, state and municipal taxes, including sales taxes,
if any, for which Consultant may be liable in carrying out this Agreement.

11. TERMINATION
This Agreement may be terminated by the City for cause when the City deems continuation to be
detrimental to its interests or for failure of the Consultant to adequately perform the services
specified in the Agreement. The City may terminate this Agreement for cause by sending a written
notice to Consultant that specifies a termination date at least seven (7) days after the date of notice.
This Agreement may also be terminated by the City without cause by sending written notice to
Consultant that specifies a termination date at least thirty (30) days after the date of notice. Unless
terminated for Consultant’s material breach, Contractor shall be paid or reimbursed for all hours
worked up to the termination date, less all payments previously made; provided that the work
performed after the date of notice must be only that which is reasonably necessary to terminate the
work in a professional manner, unless otherwise agreed.

Form Revision Professional Services Agreement
Page 3 0of 9



12. GENERAL PROVISIONS o8
a. Notices. Any notice or demand desired or required to be given under this Agreement shall be in

g.

writing and deemed given when personally delivered, sent by facsimile machine, or deposited in
the United States Mail (or with an express courier), postage prepaid, sent certified or registered
mail, and addressed to the Parties as set forth below or to such other address as either Party shall
have previously designated by such a notice:

City: Consultant:
Attn: Human Resources Manager Attn: Richard Bosman
City of Lynden Bostec, Inc.
P.O. Box 650 P.O. Box 468
Lynden, WA 98264 Lynden, WA 98264
Phone: (360) 354-1170 Phone: (360) 354-3325

Fax:  (360) 354-8175

Attn:

Records and other Tangibles. Until the expiration of six (6) years after the term of this
Agreement, Consultant agrees to maintain accurate records of providing the services specified by
the Agreement and to deliver such records to the City as requested by the City.

Ownership of Work. The City has ownership rights to the tests, reports, plans, specifications,
and other products prepared for the Project by the Consultant. Consultant shall not be responsible
for changes made in the tests, reports, plans, specifications or other products by anyone other than
the Consultant. Consultant shall have free right to retain, copy and use any tangible materials or
information produced but only for its own internal purposes. Use of documents or other materials
prepared under this Agreement for promotional purposes shall require the City’s prior consent.

Disclosure. All information developed by Consultant and all information made available to the
Consultant by the City, and all analyses or opinions reached by the Consultant shall be confidential
and shall not be disclosed by Consultant without the written consent of the City, unless said
information is made publicly available by the City.

Non-Discrimination. During the term of this Agreement, the Consultant agrees that no person
shall, on the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, marital status, age, religion, or on
the presence of any sensory, mental or physical disability, be discriminated against by the
Consultant.

Relationship of the Parties. Nothing contained herein or any document executed in connection
herewith, shall be construed to create an employer-employee relationship or joint venture
relationship between the City and Consultant, its employees or subcontractors. The Consultant is
an independent contractor. The Consultant is responsible for its acts or omissions and acts or
omissions of its agents, employees, servants, subcontractors, or otherwise during the performance
of this Agreement.

Entire Agreement. This Agreement and its attachments contain the entire understanding between
the City and Consultant relating to the Project which is the subject of this Agreement. Subsequent

Form Revision Professional Services Agreement

Page 4 of 9



modification or amendment of this Agreement shall be in writing and signed by the Parties to th

59

Agreement.

h. Waiver. Waiver of any breach or default hereunder shall not constitute a continuing waiver or a
waiver of any subsequent breach either of the same or of another provision of this Agreement.

I. Assignment. The Consultant shall not assign or transfer any interest in this Agreement in whole
or in part to any individual, firm or corporation without the prior written consent of the City.
Subject to the provisions of the preceding sentence, this Agreement shall be binding upon and
inure to the benefit of the respective successors and assigns of the Consultant. This Agreement is
made only for the benefit of the City and the Consultant and successors in interest and no third
party or person shall have any rights hereunder whether by agency or as a third-party beneficiary.

j. Severability. If any term, covenant or condition of this Agreement is held by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be invalid, the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in effect.

k. Dispute Resolution. If any dispute, controversy, or claim (collectively “dispute”) arises out of
this Agreement, the Parties agree to first try to settle the dispute in non-binding mediation with the
assistance of a recognized professional mediation service. The Parties shall each designate a
representative with full settlement authority who will participate in the mediation. The Parties shall
bear all expenses associated with the mediation equally, except for attorneys' fees. Any dispute
subject to, but not resolved by, mediation shall be subject to a private arbitration which, unless the
Parties mutually agree otherwise, shall be held in accordance with RCW 7.04A.

I. Jurisdiction/Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of Washington. Any suit to enforce or relating to this Agreement, including the
enforcement of any arbitration award, shall be brought in Whatcom County Superior Court,
Whatcom County, Washington.

m. Attorneys' Fees. In the event that any Party commences litigation against the other Party relating
to the performance, enforcement or breach of this Agreement, the prevailing party in such action
shall be entitled to all costs, including attorneys' fees, expert witness fees and costs and any such
fees or costs incurred on appeal.

n. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts and each shall be deemed an
original, but all of which together shall constitute a single instrument.

In Witness Whereof, the Parties enter into this Agreement, mutually agree on above terms, are authorized
to execute this Agreement and the Parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year indicated.

Form Revision Professional Services Agreement
Page 5 of 9



Bostec, Inc.
(“CONSULTANT”)

(Signature)

(Printed Name and Title)

Dated:
STATE OF WASHINGTON )
) ss.
COUNTY OF WHATCOM )
On this day of , 2020, before me a Notary Public in and for the State of
Washington, duly commissioned and sworn, personally appeared , the

60

of BOSTEC, INC., a Washington corporation, who acknowledged said instrument to be the free and
voluntary act and deed of said corporation for the uses and purposes therein mentioned and stated on
oath that he/she was authorized to execute this instrument on behalf of said corporation.

WITNESS my hand and official seal hereto affixed the day and year first written above.

Notary Public in and for the State of Washington
Residing at:
My commission expires:

Approved as to form:

Robert Carmichael
Attorney for City of Lynden

Dated:

Form Revision Professional Services Agreement
Page 6 of 9




61

City of Lynden
(“CITY”)

Scott Korthius, Mayor

Dated:
STATE OF WASHINGTON )
) Ss.
COUNTY OF WHATCOM )
On this day of , 2020, before me a Notary Public in and for the State of
Washington, duly commissioned and sworn, personally appeared , the

of the CITY OF LYNDEN, a Washington municipal corporation, who acknowledged said instrument to
be the free and voluntary act and deed of said corporation for the uses and purposes therein mentioned
and stated on oath that he/she was authorized to execute this instrument on behalf of said corporation.

WITNESS my hand and official seal hereto affixed the day and year first written above.

Notary Public in and for the State of Washington
Residing at:
My commission expires:

Form Revision Professional Services Agreement
Page 7 of 9



ATTACHMENT A - SCOPE OF WORK

DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING SERVICES
IN WHATCOM COUNTY, WASHINGTON

Consultant will provide the City with as-needed drug and alcohol testing services in support of
the City’s Drug and Alcohol Program. In addition, Consultant will provide reasonable suspicion
training for City management and support services related thereto.

62

Form Revision Professional Services Agreement
Page 8 of 9




ATTACHMENT B - RATES AND CHARGES

Screening Services Rates (per each)
Alcohol screen $30.00
Five panel screen $50.00
Ten panel screen $60.00
Medical Review Officer

(MRO) evaluation $25.00 - $50.00

Reasonable Suspicion Training for Managers shall be paid at the following rate:

Form Revision Professional Services Agreement
Page 9 of 9



CITY OF LYNDEN

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Meeting Date: March 16, 2020

Name of Agenda Item: | Client Service Agreement- Pinnacle
Section of Agenda: Consent

Department: Administration

Council Committee Review: Legal Review:

[J Community Development [ Public Safety Yes - Reviewed
Finance ] Public Works ] No - Not Reviewed
[ Parks ] Other: ] Review Not Required
Attachments:

Pinnacle Investigations — Client Services Agreement
End-User Agreement & Certification from Employer to Consumer Reporting Agency

Summary Statement:

Client Service Agreement - The attached agreement is for provision of pre-employment and ongoing staff
background investigative services by Pinnacle Investigations and the agreement by the City of Lynden for
payment of said services.

End-User Agreement & Certification from Employer to Consumer Reporting Agency - The attached
agreement certifies to Pinnacle Investigations that the City of Lynden will comply with the provisions in the
Fair Credit Reporting Act and any applicable state law as it pertains to “consumer report” and/or
“investigative consumer report” to be obtained for employment purposes.

Recommended Action:
Council consideration and approval for Mayor to sign the Pinnacle Investigations — Client Services Agreement
End-User Agreement & Certification from Employer to Consumer Reporting Agency.




A ;

PINNACLE

INVESTIGATIONS

Client Service Agreement

In consideration of Pinnacle Investigations Corp. agreeing to provide investigative services, and for the promise of payment to Pinnacle
Investigations Corp. as set forth herein, the following terms and conditions are hereby agreed by and between Pinnacle Investigations
Corp hereinafter referred to as Pinnacle and , the entity contracting with Pinnacle
(hereinafter referred to as “Client”). This agreement is hereinafter referred to as the “Contract”.

1) Payments for Services. The Client agrees to pay Pinnacle for its services and those of its employees at the rates set forth in any
accompanying Pre-Employment Package Price List and Element Price List. Prices are subject to change with thirty (30) days
notice. Payment will be made by company check, cashier check, or credit card.

2) Court Access Fees and Third Party Verifier Fees. The Client agrees to pay Pinnacle for all Court Access Fees and Third Party
Verifier Fees incurred during the course of the investigation.

Payment terms are Net 20, unless otherwise agreed upon in writing. The Client agrees to pay all bills for service at agreed upon rates.
Pinnacle shall issue an invoice at the time such services are rendered, due and payable within twenty (20) days of receipt of invoice,
with a 1-1/2% per month finance charge for payments made past that date. Such nonpayment may result in the termination of Client’s
access privileges and suspension of Pinnacle’s obligation to perform any further services. Services are subject to Washington State
sales tax, where applicable. Client shall be responsible for all costs of collection, including reasonable attorney fees and court costs.

3) Guarantee of Results. The Client acknowledges that Pinnacle does not guarantee results from its investigative efforts. Pinnacle will
use its best efforts and all resources readily available on behalf of the Client, but we are limited to the accuracy of the information
collected and make no warrantees or representations of the accuracy of the information it provides. Pinnacle maintains strict operating
procedures to ensure maximum possible accuracy in the reporting of public records and maintains a clear and conspicuous
Reinvestigation Procedure in the event of disputed accuracy by the consumer.

4) Compliance with Laws and Regulations. The parties agree that in connection with the investigation or consultation for which
Pinnacle is retained by this Contract, Pinnacle and Client will at all times comply with the laws and regulations of the United States,
the State of Washington, and any jurisdiction in which Pinnacle is performing services on Client’s behalf, and that the information
provided by Pinnacle is intended solely for the furtherance of legitimate and lawful pursuits. Pinnacle strictly adheres to the Gramm-
Leach-Bliley Act and the Fair Credit Reporting Act. Pinnacle and its employees use a combination of public records to obtain all
information within federal and state guidelines. Client agrees to hold Pinnacle harmless in regards to any legal issues that may occur
after the final report is issued to the Client, due to Client’s failure to comply with the terms of this section or its misuse of the information
contained in the final report, but specifically excluding any legal issues that arise due to the negligence of Pinnacle in performing its
obligations under this Contract.

5) Fair Credit Reporting Act. Pinnacle is a Consumer Reporting Agency (CRA) and is regulated by the Fair Credit Reporting Act
(FCRA). Client agrees to comply with end-user responsibilities set forth in the End-User Agreement provided by Pinnacle regarding
Disclosure & Authorization, Permissible Purpose for requesting a background report, and compliance with Adverse Action Procedures.
Any violations could result in suspension or termination of services. Client is responsible for consulting with Legal Counsel regarding
their responsibilities under the FCRA, Federal and Applicable State Laws regarding the use of background checks in the employment
and hiring process. Additional agreements and requirements will be required if credit reports are sought.

6) Confidentiality of Information. All Personally Identifiable Information (PI1) of consumers is considered confidential and will not
be sold or distributed to any individual, corporation or organization. Information provided will be used exclusively for the background
process and will not be utilized for any other purposes. If required by law, Pinnacle will comply with law enforcement inquiries for
information that is requested by legal authorities. Pinnacle’s complete Privacy Notice is posted on our website and available upon
request.

7) Standard of Care. Pinnacle shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical adequacy and accuracy, timely completion
and coordination of all reports and other services prepared or performed pursuant to this Contract. Pinnacle shall perform its work to
conform to generally accepted professional standards applicable to the types of services and work provided hereunder. Pinnacle shall
be responsible for the professional standards, performance and actions of all persons and firms performing work pursuant to this



A ;

PINNACLE

INVESTIGATIONS

Contract. Pinnacle shall, without additional compensation, correct or revise any errors, omissions or specific breaches of a contractual
obligation in such reports and other services. Client’s approval of reports and other materials shall not relieve Pinnacle of responsibility
for the adequacy or accuracy thereof. Pinnacle shall remain liable for damages and costs incurred by the Client arising from Pinnacle’s
errors, omissions or negligent performance of services furnished under this Contract

8) Indemnification. The Client agrees to indemnify, protect and hold harmless Pinnacle for any losses and expenses that Pinnacle
may incur or become liable as a result of the willful or negligent acts or omissions of the Client in performing its obligations under this
Contract. Pinnacle agrees to indemnify, protect and hold harmless, Client for any losses or expenses that Client may incur or become
liable as a result of the willful or negligent acts or omissions of Pinnacle in performing its obligations under this Contract.

9) Limitation on Liability. Neither party will be liable for special, indirect, or consequential damages arising out of or in connection
with this Contract, whether based on contract, tort, including negligence or otherwise.

10) Dispute Resolution Through Binding Arbitration. Except that either party may seek any appropriate action (such as injunctive,
equitable, or similar relief of a court order, with or without penalties, to comply with the terms of this Contract) from a court to prevent
or mitigate a breach or a further breach, as the case may be, of this Contract, all disputes, controversies, or claims arising out of or in
relation to this Contract shall be finally settled under the rules of the American Arbitration Association. The place of arbitration will
be determined and agreed on by both parties. The cost of the American Arbitration Association will be divided equally between the
Client and Pinnacle.

11) Information is proprietary. All educational materials provided by Pinnacle to the Client remains the exclusive property of Pinnacle
for use by the Client, and are not to be redistributed without prior permission.

12) Applicable Laws. This Contract and any disputes, civil actions or other proceedings shall be governed by the laws of the State of
Washington and the arbitration provisions set forth in Section 9 above.

13) Forum Selection. Any suit relating to or to enforce this Contract, including the enforcement of any arbitration award, shall be
brought in Whatcom County Superior Court, Whatcom County, Washington.

14) Severability. In the event that a term or condition of this Contract is held to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of the
remaining terms of the Contract shall remain in full force and effect.

15) Assignment. Pinnacle shall not assign, or transfer any interest in this Contract in whole or in part to any individual, firm or
corporation without the prior written consent of the Client. Subject to the provisions of the preceding sentence, this Contract shall be
binding upon and inure to the benefit of the respective successors and assigns of Pinnacle. This Contract is made only for the benefit
of the Client and Pinnacle and successors in interest and no third party or person shall have any rights hereunder whether by agency or
as a third-party beneficiary.

16) Waiver. Waiver of any breach or default hereunder shall not constitute a continuing waiver or a waiver of any subsequent breach
either of the same or of another provision of this Contract.

17) Attorney’s Fees. In the event that any party commences litigation against the other party relating to the performance, enforcement
or breach of this Agreement, the prevailing party in such action shall be entitled to all costs, including attorneys' fees, expert witness
fees and costs and any such fees or costs incurred on appeal.

18) Termination. This Contract is not intended as a contract to require the use of Pinnacle’s services. If Client wishes to terminate
services at any time, it can do so by discontinuing requests for background investigations.

19) Contract Represents Entire Agreement. This Contract constitutes the entirety of the agreement between Client and Pinnacle
Investigations. This Contract supersedes any previous oral or written communications. This Contract may not be modified or amended
except in writing and mutually agreed upon by both parties.



oD .

PINNACLE

INVESTIGATIONS

20) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts and each shall be deemed an original, but all of which
together shall constitute a single instrument.

I HAVE READ THIS CONTRACT IN ITS ENTIRETY, UNDERSTAND THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS AND AGREE
TO BE BOUND BY THOSE TERMS AND CONDITIONS.

Company Name:

Company Address:

City: State: Zip:

Phone: Fax:

Name & Title:

Signature: Date:




A

PINNACLE

INVESTIGATIONS

End-User Agreement & Certification from
Employer to Consumer Reporting Agency

In compliance with the Fair Credit Reporting Act (the “Act”) and applicable state law, Employer hereby certifies to
Pinnacle Investigations that it will comply with the following provisions.

Employer certifies that prior to obtaining or causing a “consumer report” and/or an “investigative consumer report” to be
obtained for employment purposes:

1. Aclear and conspicuous disclosure, in a document consisting solely of the disclosure, will be made in
writing to the consumer. The disclosure will explain that a consumer report and/or an investigative
consumer report may be obtained for employment purposes, and will be presented to the consumer before
the report is procured or caused to be procured. The disclosure will satisfy all requirements identified in
Section 606(a)(1) of the Act.

2. The consumer will have authorized, in writing, the obtaining of the report by Employer.

Should the consumer make a written request within a reasonable amount of time, Employer will provide:

1. Information about whether an investigative consumer report has been requested,;
If an investigative consumer report has been requested, written disclosure of the nature and scope of the
investigation requested; and

3. The name and address of the outside agency to whom requests for any of these reports has been made.

This information will be provided no later than five days after the date on which the request for such disclosure was
received from the consumer or such report was first requested, whichever is the latter.

If any adverse employment decision is made (hiring, promotion, reassignment, termination, etc.) in whole or in part on the
basis of the report, Employer will provide to the applicant or employee:

1. A copy of the report;
A description, in writing, of the rights of the consumer entitled: “A Summary of Your Rights Under the Fair
Credit Reporting Act.”

3. Pre-Adverse and Adverse Action letters as required by the Fair Credit Reporting Act

The information from the report will not be used in violation of any applicable federal or state equal employment
opportunity laws or regulations.

California Employers Only: In compliance with applicable provisions of California state law, Employer certifies the
following: Employer has made all disclosures required by California Civil Code section 1786.16(a) and will comply with
all the requirements of California Civil Code section 1786.16(b).

1. [If a copy of the report will be provided to the consumer directly by the employer, include the following: If
an investigative consumer report is requested for reasons other than suspicion of wrongdoing or misconduct
by the consumer, then Employer will provide the consumer with a copy of the report, as required by
California Civil Code section 1786.16] [If a copy of the report will be provided to the consumer by the
consumer reporting agency, include the following: If an investigative consumer report is requested and the
consumer checked the box on the authorization form signifying s/he

wants a copy of the investigative consumer report when and if s/he is entitled to one under California law,
then Employer hereby requests that a copy of the report be sent to the subject of the report unless the report
is requested in connection with an investigation based upon suspicion of wrongdoing or misconduct by the
consumer and Employer has notified you that a copy should not be provided to the consumer, in
accordance with California Civil Code section 1786.16]

68




A

PINNACLE

INVESTIGATIONS
2. Ifacredit report is requested, and if the consumer checked the box on the authorization from signifying s/he
wants a copy of the credit report, then the Company hereby requests that a copy of the credit report be sent
to the subject of the report, in accordance with California Civil Code section 1785.20.5

Section 604 of the FCRA states any consumer reporting agency may furnish a consumer report under the following
circumstances and no other:

1. Inresponse to the order of a court having jurisdiction to issue such an order, or a subpoena issued in
connection with proceedings before a Federal grand jury.

2. Inaccordance with the written instructions of the consumer to whom it relates.

3. To aperson which it has reason to believe:

a. Intends to use the information in connection with a credit transaction involving the consumer on
who the information is be furnished and involving the extension of credit to, or review or
collection of an account of, the consumer; or
Intends to use the information for employment purposes; or
Intends to use the information in connection with the underwriting of insurance involving the
consumer; or

d. Intends to use the information in connection with a determination of the consumer's eligibility for a
license or other benefit granted by a governmental instrumentality required by law to consider an
applicant’s financial responsibility or status; or

e. Intends to use the information, as a potential investor or servicer, or current insurer, in connection
with a valuation of, or an assessment of the credit or prepayment risks associated with, an existing
credit obligation; or

4. Otherwise has a legitimate business need for the information
a. In connection with a business transaction that is initiated by the consumer; or
b. To review an account to determine whether the consumer continues to meet the terms of the
account.

The FCRA provides that any person who knowingly and willfully obtains information on a consumer from a consumer
reporting agency under false pretenses shall be fined under Title 18, or imprisoned not more than two years, or both.
Please fill out the section below to confirm your permissible purpose and acknowledge receipt of the Notice of Users to
Consumer Reports.

Permissible Purpose: Employment Purposes

Company Name:

Your Name & Title

Signature:

Date:

69




A

PINNACLE

INVESTIGATIONS

All users of consumer reports must comply with all applicable regulations. Information about
applicable regulations currently in effect can be found at the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau’s
website, www.consumerfinance.gov/learnmore.

NOTICE TO USERS OF CONSUMER REPORTS:
OBLIGATIONS OF USERS UNDER THE FCRA

The Fair Credit Reporting Act (FCRA), 15 U.S.C. 1681-1681y, requires that this notice be provided to inform users of
consumer reports of their legal obligations. State law may impose additional requirements. The text of the FCRA is
set forth in full at the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau’s (CFPB) website at
www.consumerfinance.gov/learnmore. At the end of this document is a list of United States Code citations for the
FCRA. Other information about user duties is also available at the CFPB’s website. Users must consult the
relevant provisions of the FCRA for details about their obligations under the FCRA.

The first section of this summary sets forth the responsibilities imposed by the FCRA on all users of consumer
reports. The subsequent sections discuss the duties of users of reports that contain specific types of information, or
that are used for certain purposes, and the legal consequences of violations. If you are a furnisher of information to
a consumer reporting agency (CRA), you have additional obligations and will receive a separate notice from the CRA
describing your duties as a furnisher.

I. OBLIGATIONS OF ALL USERS OF CONSUMER REPORTS

A. Users Must Have a Permissible Purpose

Congress has limited the use of consumer reports to protect consumers’ privacy. All users must have a permissible
purpose under the FCRA to obtain a consumer report. Section 604 contains a list of the permissible purposes under
the law. These are:

e As ordered by a court or a federal grand jury subpoena. Section 604(a)(1)

e Asinstructed by the consumer in writing. Section 604(a)(2)

e  For the extension of credit as a result of an application from a consumer, or the review or collection of a
consumer’s account. Section 604(a)(3)(A)

e  For employment purposes, including hiring and promotion decisions, where the consumer has given
written permission. Sections 604(a)(3)(B) and 604(b)

e  For the underwriting of insurance as a result of an application from a consumer. Section 604(a)(3)(C)

e When there is a legitimate business need, in connection with a business transaction that is initiated by the
consumer. Section 604(a)(3)(F)(i)

e To review a consumer’s account to determine whether the consumer continues to meet the terms of the
account. Section 604(a)(3)(F)(ii)

e To determine a consumer’s eligibility for a license or other benefit granted by a governmental
instrumentality required by law to consider an applicant’s financial responsibility or status. Section
604(a)(3)(D)

e For use by a potential investor or servicer, or current insurer, in a valuation or assessment of the credit or
prepayment risks associated with an existing credit obligation. Section 604(a)(3)(E)

e  For use by state and local officials in connection with the determination of child support payments, or
modifications and enforcement thereof. Sections 604(a)(4) and 604(a)(5)

In addition, creditors and insurers may obtain certain consumer report information for the purpose of making
“prescreened” unsolicited offers of credit or insurance. Section 604(c). The particular obligations of users of
“prescreened” information are described in Section VII below.

B. Users Must Provide Certifications

Section 604(f) prohibits any person from obtaining a consumer report from a consumer reporting agency (CRA)
unless the person has certified to the CRA the permissible purpose(s) for which the report is being obtained and
certifies that the report will not be used for any other purpose.

C. Users Must Notify Consumers When Adverse Actions Are Taken

The term “adverse action” is defined very broadly by Section 603. “Adverse actions” include all business, credit, and

70




A

PINNACLE

INVESTIGATIONS

employment actions affecting consumers that can be considered to have a negative impact as defined by Section
603(k) of the FCRA — such as denying or canceling credit or insurance, or denying employment or promotion. No
adverse action occurs in a credit transaction where the creditor makes a counteroffer that is accepted by the
consumer.

1. Adverse Actions Based on Information Obtained From a CRA

If a user takes any type of adverse action as defined by the FCRA that is based at least in part on information
contained in a consumer report, Section 615(a) requires the user to notify the consumer. The notification may be
done in writing, orally, or by electronic means. It must include the following:

e The name, address, and telephone number of the CRA (including a toll-free telephone number, if it is a
nationwide CRA) that provided the report.

e A statement that the CRA did not make the adverse decision and is not able to explain why the decision
was made.

e A statement setting forth the consumer’s right to obtain a free disclosure of the consumer’s file from the
CRA if the consumer makes a request within 60 days.

e A statement setting forth the consumer’s right to dispute directly with the CRA the accuracy or
completeness of any information provided by the CRA.

2. Adverse Actions Based on Information Obtained From Third Parties Who Are Not Consumer
Reporting Agencies

If a person denies (or increases the charge for) credit for personal, family, or household purposes based either
wholly or partly upon information from a person other than a CRA, and the information is the type of consumer
information covered by the FCRA, Section 615(b)(1) requires that the user clearly and accurately disclose to the
consumer his or her right to be told the nature of the information that was relied upon if the consumer makes a
written request within 60 days of notification. The user must provide the disclosure within a reasonable period of
time following the consumer’s written request.

3. Adverse Actions Based on Information Obtained From Affiliates

If a person takes an adverse action involving insurance, employment, or a credit transaction initiated by the
consumer, based on information of the type covered by the FCRA, and this information was obtained from an entity
affiliated with the user of the information by common ownership or control, Section 615(b)(2) requires the user to
notify the consumer of the adverse action. The notice must inform the consumer that he or she may obtain a
disclosure of the nature of the information relied upon by making a written request within 60 days of receiving the
adverse action notice. If the consumer makes such a request, the user must disclose the nature of the information
not later than 30 days after receiving the request. If consumer report information is shared among affiliates and
then used for an adverse action, the user must make an adverse action disclosure as set forth in I.C.1 above.

D. Users Have Obligations When Fraud and Active Duty Military Alerts are in Files

When a consumer has placed a fraud alert, including one relating to identify theft, or an active duty military alert
with a nationwide consumer reporting agency as defined in Section 603(p) and resellers, Section 605A(h) imposes
limitations on users of reports obtained from the consumer reporting agency in certain circumstances, including the
establishment of a new credit plan and the issuance of additional credit cards. For initial fraud alerts and active duty
alerts, the user must have reasonable policies and procedures in place to form a belief that the user knows the
identity of the applicant or contact the consumer at a telephone number specified by the consumer; in the case of
extended fraud alerts, the user must contact the consumer in accordance with the contact information provided in
the consumer’s alert.

E. Users Have Obligations When Notified of an Address Discrepancy

Section 605(h) requires nationwide CRAs, as defined in Section 603(p), to notify users that request reports when the
address for a consumer provided by the user in requesting the report is substantially different from the addresses in
the consumer’s file. When this occurs, users must comply with regulations specifying the procedures to be followed.

Federal regulations are available at www.consumerfinance.gov/learnmore.

71




A

PINNACLE

INVESTIGATIONS
F. Users Have Obligations When Disposing of Records

Section 628 requires that all users of consumer report information have in place procedures to properly dispose of
records containing this information. Federal regulations are available at www.consumerfinance.gov/learnmore.

II. CREDITORS MUST MAKE ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

If a person uses a consumer report in connection with an application for, or a grant, extension, or provision of, credit
to a consumer on material terms that are materially less favorable than the most favorable terms available to a
substantial proportion of consumers from or through that person, based in whole or in part on a consumer report,
the person must provide a risk-based pricing notice to the consumer in accordance with regulations prescribed by the
CFPB.

Section 609(g) requires a disclosure by all persons that make or arrange loans secured by residential real property
(one to four units) and that use credit scores. These persons must provide credit scores and other information about
credit scores to applicants, including the disclosure set forth in Section 609(g)(1)(D) (“Notice to the Home Loan
Applicant”).

III. OBLIGATIONS OF USERS WHEN CONSUMER REPORTS ARE OBTAINED FOR EMPLOYMENT
PURPOSES

A. Employment Other Than in the Trucking Industry

If the information from a CRA is used for employment purposes, the user has specific duties, which are set forth in
Section 604(b) of the FCRA. The user must:

e Make a clear and conspicuous written disclosure to the consumer before the report is obtained, in a
document that consists solely of the disclosure, that a consumer report may be obtained.

e  Obtain from the consumer prior written authorization. Authorization to access reports during the term of
employment may be obtained at the time of employment.

e  Certify to the CRA that the above steps have been followed, that the information being obtained will not
be used in violation of any federal or state equal opportunity law or regulation, and that, if any adverse
action is to be taken based on the consumer report, a copy of the report and a summary of the consumer’s
rights will be provided to the consumer.

e Before taking an adverse action, the user must provide a copy of the report to the consumer as well as
the summary of consumer’s rights (The user should receive this summary from the CRA.) A Section 615(a)
adverse action notice should be sent after the adverse action is taken.

An adverse action notice also is required in employment situations if credit information (other than transactions and
experience data) obtained from an affiliate is used to deny employment. Section 615(b)(2).

The procedures for investigative consumer reports and employee misconduct investigations are set forth below.

B. Employment in the Trucking Industry

Special rules apply for truck drivers where the only interaction between the consumer and the potential employer is
by mail, telephone, or computer. In this case, the consumer may provide consent orally or electronically, and an
adverse action may be made orally, in writing, or electronically. The consumer may obtain a copy of any report
relied upon by the trucking company by contacting the company.

IV. OBLIGATIONS WHEN INVESTIGATIVE CONSUMER REPORTS ARE USED

Investigative consumer reports are a special type of consumer report in which information about a consumer’s
character, general reputation, personal characteristics, and mode of living is obtained through personal interviews by
an entity or person that is a consumer reporting agency. Consumers who are the subjects of such reports are given
special rights under the FCRA. If a user intends to obtain an investigative consumer report, Section 606 requires the
following:

72




A

PINNACLE

INVESTIGATIONS

e The user must disclose to the consumer that an investigative consumer report may be obtained. This must
be done in a written disclosure that is mailed, or otherwise delivered, to the consumer at some time before
or not later than three days after the date on which the report was first requested. The disclosure

must include a statement informing the consumer of his or her right to request additional disclosures of the

nature and scope of the investigation as described below, and the summary of consumer rights required by

Section 609 of the FCRA. (The summary of consumer rights will be provided by the CRA that conducts the
investigation.)

« The user must certify to the CRA that the disclosures set forth above have been made and that the user

will make the disclosure described below.

« Upon the written request of a consumer made within a reasonable period of time after the disclosures

required above, the user must make a complete disclosure of the nature and scope of the investigation.

This must be made in a written statement that is mailed or otherwise delivered, to the consumer no later

than five days after the date on which the request was received from the consumer or the report was first
requested, whichever is later in time.

V. SPECIAL PROCEDURES FOR EMPLOYMEE INVESTIGATIONS

Section 603(x) provides special procedures for investigations of suspected misconduct by an employee or for
compliance with Federal, state or local laws and regulations or the rules of a self-regulatory organization, and
compliance with written policies of the employer. These investigations are not treated as consumer reports so long
as the employer or its agent complies with the procedures set forth in Section 603(x), and a summary describing the
nature and scope of the inquiry is made to the employee if an adverse action is taken based on the investigation.
VI. OBLIGATIONS OF USERS OF MEDICAL INFORMATION

Section 604(g) limits the use of medical information obtained from consumer reporting agencies (other than payment
information that appears in a coded form that does not identify the medical provider). If the information is to be
used for an insurance transaction, the consumer must give consent to the user of the report or the information must
be coded. If the report is to be used for employment purposes — or in connection with a credit transaction (except
as provided in regulations) the consumer must provide specific written consent and the medical information must be
relevant. Any user who receives medical information shall not disclose the information to any other person (except
where necessary to carry out the purpose for which the information was disclosed, or a permitted by statute,
regulation, or order).

VII. OBLIGATIONS OF USERS OF “"PRESCREENED"” LISTS

The FCRA permits creditors and insurers to obtain limited consumer report information for use in connection with
unsolicited offers of credit or insurance under certain circumstances. Sections 603(1), 604(c), 604(e), and 615(d).
This practice is known as “prescreening” and typically involves obtaining from a CRA a list of consumers who meet
certain preestablished criteria. If any person intends to use prescreened lists, that person must (1) before the offer
is made, establish the criteria that will be relied upon to make the offer and to grant credit or insurance, and (2)
maintain such criteria on file for a three-year period beginning on the date on which the offer is made to each
consumer. In addition, any user must provide with each written solicitation a clear and conspicuous statement that:
 Information contained in a consumer’s CRA file was used in connection with the transaction.

* The consumer received the offer because he or she satisfied the criteria for credit worthiness or

insurability used to screen for the offer.

« Credit or insurance may not be extended if, after the consumer responds, it is determined that the

consumer does not meet the criteria used for screening or any applicable criteria bearing on credit

worthiness or insurability, or the consumer does not furnish required collateral.

- The consumer may prohibit the use of information in his or her file in connection with future prescreened

offers of credit or insurance by contacting the notification system established by the CRA that provided the

report. The statement must include the address and toll-free telephone number of the appropriate

notification system.

In addition, the CFPB has established the format, type size, and manner of the disclosure required by Section 615(d),
with which users must comply. The relevant regulation is 12 CFR 1022.54.

73




CITY OF LYNDEN

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Meeting Date: March 16, 2020

Name of Agenda ltem: | PRD Amendment 19-01 — RB Development (Parkview Apts)
Section of Agenda: Unfinished Business
Department: Planning Department

Council Committee Review: Legal Review:

[J Community Development [ Public Safety Yes - Reviewed

[ Finance [ Public Works ] No - Not Reviewed
[ Parks ] Other: ] Review Not Required
Attachments:

Planning Commission Package and Minutes of October 10, 2019, Staff memo re Conditions of Approval, City
Council Remand Order, PC Package of February 27, 2020 (Hearing on Remand), Draft Minutes and Items added to
the Record at the February 27t Hearing of the Remand, Draft Resolution and Findings of the February 27, 2020 PC
Hearing,

Summary Statement:

December 2, 2019 City Council approved an Order of Remand which sent the proposed Planned Residential
Development (PRD) Amendment 19-01, a revision to the RB Development PRD, back to the Planning Commission
for review of an alternate proposal. The amendment seeks to utilize residential units originally planned for the
PRD by modifying the perimeter setback associated with Parkview Apts, setting an increased height limitation, and
removing outdoor storage requirements for the proposed units. If the amendment is permitted, the applicant
proposes the construction of senior apartments which would complement the surrounding property uses.

A revised application returned to a public hearing before the Planning Commission on February 27, 2020. The
proposal reduced the building height from 45’ to 41’, reduced the proposed units from 50 to 41, proposed
crosswalk improvements on Aaron Dr, and increased the setback from the street from 15’ to 20’. At the hearing,
concerns were raised as to the ability of the applicant to transfer this number of unused units of the PRD to this
site. In 1994, when the PRD was created, it was possible to transfer unused density within the PRD. However, in
2006 the code on PRD’s was revised to prohibit the transfer of units from one area to another.

As a result, the Commission voted 4 to 2 to recommend approval of the PRD amendment but the recommendation
was fundamentally conditioned on the ability of the applicant to transfer density within the PRD. Legal
interpretation was requested from the office of Carmichael Clark. On March 12 the attached conclusive memo was
received. It indicates that as the transfer of density was expressly permitted under the old code as well as the
original contract, the developer maintains the right to transfer densities from one area of the PRD to another.

If passed by Council, the approval will be considered preliminary until the applicant finalizes the associated
development contract and CC&R’s. Both documents must return to the Planning Commission and Council within
12 months. Staff will also return to Council with findings of face and conclusion of law.

Recommended Action:

Motion to preliminarily approve the amendment to the RB Development PRD, Application 19-01 as presented.




AN de e

75

PRD Amendment #19-01

‘J I M PA C T Planning Commission Meeting 2-27-20

DESIGN

Introduction
Scott Goodall, PE, Impact Design
Mark Hollander, Hollander Investments
Discussion of PRD Amendment #19-01 as Remanded by Council
Recap
e RB Development / Heritage Park PRD is a 28.7 acre development located between Badger Road and Aaron Drive
and Bender Road and Vinup Drive. It was approved with plans for apartments, condominiums and townhomes for
up to 437 units.
e RB Development PRD was approved in 1994 and has been amended several times from the original design to
include the construction of the Christian Health Care Center and changes in other building layout design.
e The PRD amendment was applied for in October of 2019. The purpose of this amendment was to facilitate the

construction of the Parkview West Senior Housing Apartment Expansion. The goal of this project is to provide for

an affordable senior housing facility in Lynden. There is a great need for affordable senior housing in Lynden.

The design of the building required the following amendments to the PRD:
o Proposed 15' Front Yard Setback / Existing PRD has a 30’ Front Yard Setback
o Proposed 45" Height Limit (5 Story Building) / Existing PRD has a 2-story height limit
o Proposed 50 units per building / Existing PRD has a 30 unit limit per building
o Proposed 25% Open Space / Existing PRD has a 30% Open Space Requirement for this Area
o Proposed to meet City of Lynden Parking Code for Retirement Housing
o Proposed to remove the storage space requirement for the additional units

e A Planning Commission Meeting was held on October 10, 2019. The Planning Commission agreed that senior

housing was greatly needed in Lynden but had reservations about the size and scale of the building and parking.

e A City Council Meeting was held on December 2, 2019, in which the Council remanded the PRD amendment back
to the Planning Commission for further review and discussion of applicability of LMC 19.29.010 (PRD Purpose),
19.29.060 (PRD Minimum Requirements) and 19.29.110 (PRD Approval).

Current Proposal

e Inresponse to comments from the Planning Commission, the Parkview West Senior Housing Apartment Expansion

building design has been revised to address the concerns brought up in the last meeting

o The unit count has been revised to 41 instead of 50
= The greater unit count is required to provide for an elevator. A senior housing facility must have
an elevator. To make the units affordable, the cost of the elevator must be split between many

units.

-



76

Page 3 |mpaCt De TOTT
N T T e Y W T LT E P

As mandated by the Council Remand, | will provide a code review for LMC 19.29.010 (PRD Purpose), 19.29.060 (PRD
Minimum Requirements) and 19.29.110 (PRD Approval).

Purpose of PRD’s (LMC 19.29.010)

e This project is consistent with the primary purpose of PRD’s as described in LMC 19.29.010:

e The primary purpose of a planned residential development (PRD) or master planned residential development
(MPRD) is to promote creativity in site layout and design, allowing flexibility in the application of the standard zoning

requirements and development standards. More specifically, it is the purpose of this chapter to:

e (A) Meeting the Goals of the Comprehensive Plan

o Goal H-2: Provide a mix of single-family and multifamily homes that achieves the density necessary to

accommodate projected population growth over the 20-year planning period.

= Policy 2.1: Zoning should be applied to ensure that future residential development over the

planning period is composed of approximately 60% single-family units and 40% multifamily units.

o Goal H-3: Provide for a wide variety of housing types, including low cost housing, for different needs

and desires in appropriate locations

= Policy 3.6: The City encourages the construction of new senior housing and may allow increased

density to encourage this type of housing.

= Policy 3.8 The City will encourage the including of affordable housing units and may grant

exemptions such as higher density,
e (B) Preserving native vegetation and critical areas and natural amenities

o The Parkview West parcel property is already developed with no critical areas or woodlands. This project
is designed as an infill development will result in no environmental impacts to critical areas or farmland,

which would be likely if the project was constructed on an undeveloped property.
e (C) Encourage Infill within areas of the City
o This is an infill development project

Our project meets three of the (5) primary purposes for PRD's.

Minimum Standards for PRD’s (LMC 19.29.060)

e New development in the PRD needs to meet certain standards including building height, setbacks, lot coverage,

and other restrictions.

e This PRD amendment only deviates from the minimum standards for PRD’s per LMC 19.29.060 in one area:

Impact Design, 5426 Barrett Road, Ferndale WA 98248
cell: 360-389-8138 email: scott@bold-impact.com



77
Page4 lmpaCt DC TOTT

o LMC 19.29.060 requires a 25’ minimum perimeter setback, we are proposing a 20’ setback. The 20’ setback
is allowed in the adjacent Bender Plaza. The project narrative provided for your review incorrectly references

a 15" minimum setback, which was clarified by City staff.

e LMC 19.29.060 (J) - Where the applicant seeks to depart from the minimum standards in the PRD Process, the

commission shall consider one or more of these (5) factors. Not only does the project achieve one required factor;

it meets all of them:

o (1) The modification of minimum standards protects or improves the character of the surrounding

neighborhood in terms of architectural scale, view corridors, the aesthetic character or provisions of services:

» The architectural scale and high aesthetics of the proposed building will improve the character
of the surrounding neighborhood. The proposed building will be vastly superior in aesthetics,

and a great improvement over the existing Parkview West dated vinyl siding.

Existing Parkview West Apartments Proposed Parkview West Senior Housing Expansion

o (2) The modification of minimum development standards protects critical areas and the environmental

quality of the parcel(s) to be developed;

» This infill project protects the environment as it impacts no critical areas, has no shorelines
impacts, does not displace farmland. This project would likely have critical areas impacts if it

were constructed on an undeveloped parcel.

o (3) The modification of minimum standards is necessary to permit reasonable development as a result of

unique characteristics of the property or the proposed uses;

Impact Design, 5426 Barrett Road, Ferndale WA 98248
cell: 360-389-8138 email: scott@bold-impact.com



78
Page 5 Impact De TOTT

» The goal of this project as a proposed use is an affordable senior housing facility. A senior
housing facility must have an elevator. To make the units affordable, the cost of the elevator

must be split between many units resulting in a larger structure and less setbacks.

»  Affordability in housing increases with density and efficiency in design. This project is
economically efficient by building on land already served by utilities. Building on undeveloped

land would result in much greater development costs which would be past down to the tenant.

o (4) The modification of building height (subject to Section 19.29.060(2)) or building setbacks where
reasonably necessary due to arrangement of buildings and open spaces as they relate to various uses within
or adjacent to the planned development; provided that any such modification shall be consistent with

subsection (a) herein;

» Due to the arrangement of buildings on this property, the setback must be 20'. Nothing less will
work without demolishing a portion of the existing Parkview West Apartments, which would be

an unacceptable treatment of the current tenants.

o (5) The modification of minimum standards is adequately mitigated by reasonably related public

improvements proposed in connection with the planned development.
»  This project will construct a pedestrian crossing to Bender Fields as a public improvement to aid
in congestion issued brought to light around Bender Fields.
Criteria for Approval
Per LMC Section 19.29.110, the Planning Commission shall approve or deny the PRD Amendment based on the following
criteria.

A. Design Criteria: The design of the PRD or MPRD shall achieve two or more of the following results. Not only does

the project achieve the two required criteria; it meets all of them:

1. High quality architectural design, placement, relationship or orientation of the structures;

The Architectural Design is a vast improvement over the existing Parkview West exterior of vinyl

siding.
2. Achieving the allowable density for the subject property;

The original RB Development / Heritage Park PRD contemplated 437 total units. The existing PRD
contains 343 existing units. The unit count for the Christian Health Care Center was determined by the
#19-01 Official Remand Order to be 85 units in the PRD Amendment. This is based on 57 semi-private
suites and 28 private suites per LMC 17.01.030. As can be seen, there is capacity for 94 additional units

available in the development. We propose only 41 more units, allowing for 53 future units in the PRD.

R oo e 5 o' A £ DL e e iy R N S e S £ 1 DR el S RS e T AT S S S AN LN o Rk 2 b W S T Wk SRR S R AR G RE TR SRS S i
Impact Design, 5426 Barrett Road, Ferndale WA 98248
cell: 360-389-8138 email: scott@bold-impact.com




Page 6

79
Impact DeSmgm

Development ‘ Unit Count
Heritage Park Estates Condominium 64
Lynden Manor Townhomes 40
Lynden Manor 109
Christian Health Care Center 85
Parkview West Apartments 45
Total Existing Units: 343
Proposed Parkview Senior Housing Expansion 47
Total Unit Count: 384
Originally Contemplated: 437

Providing housing types that effectively serve the affordable housing needs of the community;

Affordable senior housing is the goal of this project. The building expansion will provide studio and
one-bedroom units, which are much more affordable than large two and three bedroom units. Many

seniors who are on fixed incomes need affordability and seek efficient spaces.
Improving circulation patterns;

This project proposes a pedestrian crossing from the north side of Aaron Drive to Bender Fields. This

will help to alleviate congestion and increase pedestrian circulation in this part of town.
Minimizing the use of impervious surfacing materials;

This project will minimize impervious surface by providing a very efficient design for the construction
of 41 additional units. This building would take up twice as much space if the existing PRD height

restrictions were upheld. Pervious pavement will be used as feasible.
Increasing open space or recreational facilities on-site;

The existing open space on the parcel will be improved. This will include a community garden for

tenants, or possibly a fenced dog park area.

Preserving, enhancing or rehabilitating the natural features of the property such as significant woodlands, or

critical areas;

The Parkview West parcel property is already developed with no critical areas or woodlands. This
project is designed as an infill development will result in no environmental impacts to critical areas or

farmland, which would be likely if the project was constructed on an undeveloped property.

e S T e T B e S P e S U, R S L e S e )

Impact Design, 5426 Barrett Road, Ferndale WA 98248
cell: 360-389-8138 email: scott@bold-impact.com



Page 7

80
Impact Dealgn

Conclus

B. Perimeter Design — The perimeter of a PRD or MPRD shall be appropriate in design, character and
appearance with the existing or intended character of the development adjacent to the subject property and with

the physical characteristics of the property.

Most of the existing commercial buildings in the PRD are above average aesthetic appeal. Our project
will be a continuation of the aesthetics of Bender Plaza and a vast improvement over the dated look of

the existing Parkview West Apartments.

C. Streets and Sidewalks — Existing and proposed streets and sidewalks within a PRD or MPRD shall be suitable
to carry the anticipated traffic within the proposed development and the vicinity. The design of the circulation

system shall be consistent with the requirements of Chapter 18.14 LMC.

The original PRD was approved with 437 units. The total unit count after the proposed Parkview West
Senior Housing Expansion is 384. This is less than the originally approved 437 units assumed during
the original traffic study and engineered design of the roadways and sidewalks in the development,
which was consistent with LMC 18.14.

ions
The main consensus of the last planning commission meeting was that affordable senior housing was needed in

Lynden. We all agreed on this and that is the goal of this project. Our project will provide affordable senior

housing in a desirable location with access to nearby amenities such as Bender Plaza and public parks.

We believe that we have addressed the comments in our design made by the Planning Commission with our
revised design. An affordable senior housing facility cannot be placed here without making amendments to the

PRD. We have made compromises in our amendments as requested by the Planning Commission.
Please consider staff recommendations when making your decision:

o “Staff recognizes that the project may be more urban in nature than previous development within the City.
However, given the goals of the PRD code, the Comprehensive Plan, and the nature of the revised

proposal staff has concluded that proposal warrants approval”

Please consider applicable LMC sections referenced above in detail when making your decision as remanded by

the Council.

Impact Design, 5426 Barrett Road, Ferndale WA 98248
cell: 360-389-8138 email: scott@bold-impact.com



Add L R

3.7 HOUSING GOALS AND POLICIES

Goal H-1:  Maintain and enhance the quality of existing neighborhoods.

Policies

1.1. Establish standards for infill development that ensure compatibility with the
character of existing neighborhoods.

1.2. Enhance and maintain public rights-of-way, parks, and open spaces by providing
sidewalks, lighting, landscaping, and other amenities.

1.3.  Provide buffers, including landscaping, between commercial, industrial, or higher
density land uses and existing residential neighborhoods.

1.4. Solicit neighborhood and community comment on proposed plans in existing

residential neighborhoods.

Goal H-2:  Provide a mix of single-family and multifamily homes that achieves
the density necessary to accommodate projected population growth

over the 20-year planning period.

Policies

il

Zoning should be applied to ensure that future residential development over the
planning period is composed of approximately 60% single-family units and 40%
multifamily units.

Goal H-3:  Provide for a wide variety of housing types, including low cost

housing, for different needs and desires in appropriate locations.

Policies

3.1.

S

3.3

3.4.

Allow multi-family housing to be dispersed throughout the City as long as the
character of existing neighborhoods is maintained.

Encourage use of the Planned Residential Development ordinance, which
allows for diversification of housing types and the preservation of open space.

Provide zoning that allows for mixed density neighborhoods.

Where the Planning Commission and the City Council finds that there are
adequate reasons for such designation. These reasons may include special
topographical conditions, geographic location, and the creation of large planned
unit residential developments.

10

81




3.5.

86

3.7.

S

3.9.

In order to provide for a wide choice of housing types and costs, the City of
Lynden will allow, in appropriate areas, alternative residential housing units such
as group and cooperative housing, assisted living facilities, mobile and modular
homes.

The City of Lynden encourages the construction of new senior housing, and may
allow bonuses such as lesser parking requirements and increased density to

encourage this type of housing.

The community of Lynden will provide creative opportunities for affordable
housing, for all income levels, with the emphasis toward ownership, for at least
80% of those households who: 1) are at or below 80% of median income for
Whatcom County, 2) and whose shelter costs exceed 30% of gross income.

The City of Lynden will encourage the inclusion of affordable housing units or lots
in developments by granting some special exceptions to a developer. These
exceptions include smaller lots, higher density, reduced impact fees, or other
exceptions as deemed appropriate by the Planning Commission and the City
Council.

Redevelopment or infill development that creates new multifamily housing should
be permitted at the fringes of existing industrial or commercial areas.

Goal H-4: Establish standards for multifamily housing that ensure its

compatibility with the existing character of Lynden.

Policies

41.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

Provide architectural standards and architectural review of new multifamily
development.

Ensure that new multifamily housing is integrated with existing neighborhoods,
through its siting and design.

Provide buffers and greenbelts between multi-family and single family
residences.

Ensure compatibility of scale, massing, setbacks, and other architectural

elements between new multifamily development and existing adjacent single-
family housing.

11

82




83




84




85




86




87




88




89




90




91




92




93




94




95




96




97




98










101




102




103




104




105







107




108




109










112




113




114




115




116




117




118




119




120




121




122




123




124




125




126




127




128




129




130




131




132




133




134




135




136




137




138




139




140




141




142




143




144




145




146




147




148




149




150




151




152




153




154




155




156




157




158




159




160




ATTORNEYS AT LAW Bellingham, WA, 98225 F. 360 647 1501
carmichaelclark.com

% CARMICHAEL CLARK, P.S. 1700 D Street P. 360 647 1500 161

ROBERT A. CARMICHAEL | Attorney
bob@carmichaelclark.com

MEMORANDUM

TO: Heidi Gudde
FROM: Robert Carmichael and Catherine Moore
DATE: March 12, 2020

SUBIJECT: RB Development PRD

INTRODUCTION

You asked us to determine whether the City of Lynden (City)’s current code provision prohibiting moving
densities between areas within a planned residential development (“PRD”) applies to the RB Development
PRD (“RB PRD”). It is our conclusion that the RB PRD is not vested to the old code allowing such transfers.
However, because such density transfers are expressly allowed under both the Development Contract and
the City Code in place at the time the Development Contract was entered, we conclude that RB
Development retains a contract right to move densities to different areas within the PRD.

FACTS

The RB PRD was approved in two stages: the development contract for the entire RB PRD in 1994, recorded
at Whatcom County Auditor’s File No. 941227078 (“Development Contract”), and the plat subdividing the
property in 1995, recorded at Whatcom County Auditor’s File No. 950412119 (“Plat”). RB Development is
now proposing a 41-unit age-restricted housing development which was not contemplated in the
Development Contract. The age-restricted housing would be placed on an open portion of a lot in Area B of
the RB PRD. Area B was originally allocated 152 units of residential density. The particular lot the age-
restricted development would go on is already improved with a 45-unit apartment building. The rest of
Area B contains the Christian Health Care Center, a 142-bed facility allocated 85 units. The PRD as a whole
has more than 41 remaining units, but Area B of the PRD has only 22 remaining units.!

Ch. 19.29 LMC governs PRDs. The version in effect at the time the RB PRD was approved permitted

transferring densities between areas outright. The Development Contract modified this code provision to
allow RB Development to move units from one area of the PRD to another area only after public hearing.
However, the current version of LMC 19.29.120, adopted in 2006, explicitly prohibits such modifications.

! Area Bis Lots 3, 4, 5, and 6 as designated on the Plat. At various points in the documents related to the PRD,
there has been discussion of how 38 units were allocated to each “quadrant,” but units have been moved between
guadrants freely. We found no authority for asserting that the distribution of the densities had to be uniform
across the entirety of Area B.



162

March 12, 2020

Page 2 of 6

ANALYSIS
. The RB Development PRD is NOT vested to being able to move densities between areas.

The vested rights doctrine originated at common law, and was eventually incorporated into state statute
for certain types of land use applications.? vested rights extend to complete applications for “building
permits...; subdivisions...; and development agreements....”3

There is no state statute governing planned residential developments (or more generally, planned unit
developments or “PUDs”) because PUDs are not defined by statute in Washington. There is also no statute
extending vesting to a PUD on its own, in the absence of one of the above-mentioned applications to which
vesting applies. Therefore, because applications for PUDs are “are not vested by statute, the vested rights
doctrine does not apply.”* However, when a PUD application and a plat application are inextricably linked,
the vesting that applies to the plat application is extended to the companion PUD application.®

Here, the RB PRD was accompanied by the Plat recorded at Whatcom County Auditor’s File No. 950412119.
The RB PRD has the same “vested” rights as the Plat.

A. The possibility of permitting an amendment to the PRD to move units from one area to another is
a “land use control ordinance” within the meaning of RCW 58.17.033.

RCW 58.17.033 is the statute codifying the vested rights doctrine for subdivisions:

(1) A proposed division of land, as defined in RCW 58.17.020, shall be considered under the
subdivision or short subdivision ordinance, and zoning or other land use control ordinances,
in effect on the land at the time a fully completed application for preliminary plat approval
of the subdivision, or short plat approval of the short subdivision, has been submitted to the
appropriate county, city, or town official.

The statute does not define “land use control ordinance,” nor is it defined in the other sections on vesting.
Courts have defined “land use control ordinance as “an ordinance that exerts a restraining or directing
influence over land use.”® Further, the land use control ordinance must be related to an issue left to the
municipality’s discretion, not one mandated by state or federal law.’

It is our interpretation that the ordinance prohibiting moving densities from one area of the PRD to another
would be a “land use control ordinance” for vesting purposes. The ability to move densities impacts

2 Town of Woodway v. Snohomish Cty., 180 Wn.2d 165, 173, 322 P.3d 1219, 1223 (2014), abrogated on other grounds by Yim v. City
of Seattle, 194 Wn.2d 682, 451 P.3d 694 (2019).

3 RMG Worldwide LLC v. Pierce Cty., 2 Wash.App.2d 257, 279-80, 409 P.3d 1126, 1138 (2017).
41d. at 280.

5 Schneider Homes v. City of Kent, 87 Wash.App. 774, 779, 942 P.2d 1096, 1099 (1997), review denied, 134 Wn.2d 1021, 958 P.2d
316 (1998).

6 Snohomish Cty. v. Pollution Control Hearings Bd., 187 Wn.2d 346, 366, 386 P.3d 1064, 1074 (2016), as amended (May 2, 2017),
citing New Castle Investments v. City of LaCenter, 98 Wash.App. 224, 232, 989 P.2d 569 (1999).

71d. at 374.



163

March 12, 2020

Page 3 of 6

physical site development, and the prohibition on moving densities was an exercise in the City’s discretion.
Therefore, we conclude that the ability to move densities vested with the PRD.

B. However, the vested status of the PRD expired when the vested status of the Plat did.

RCW 58.17.170(2)(a) states: “...any lots in a final plat filed for record shall be a valid land use
notwithstanding any change in zoning laws for a period of seven years from the date of filing if the date of
filing is on or before December 31, 2014..."” In 1994 when the RB PRD was approved, the RCW stated: “a
subdivision shall be governed by the terms of approval of the final plat, and the statutes, ordinances, and
regulations in effect at the time of approval under RCW 58.17.150(1) and (3) for a period of five years after
final plat approval...”

Regardless of whether the five or seven-year limit applies, any right to develop under the land use
ordinances in effect at the time of plat approval has expired. Even if the RB PRD was vested to the ability to
move densities between areas, it is not any longer. The vested rights doctrine will provide RB Development
no relief.

1. RB Development does, however, appear to have a contract right to transfer densities.

In 2006, the City adopted an ordinance which prohibits the transfer of densities from one area of a PRD to
another. LMC 19.29.120(C)(1). But, Paragraph 19(e) of the Development Contract states, “Unused densities
or units cannot be transferred to other parcels without approval through the PRD hearing process as
established in Lynden Municipal Code 19.29.050.” In other words, the Development Contract allows density
transfers between areas if approved by the City through the process provided in LMC 19.29.050 as it
existed in 1994.

LMC 19.29.050 described the hearing process for approval of a PRD, which is the same as the hearing
process for approval of a PRD today. The planning commission made a recommendation to the city council,
who had the ultimate authority to approve or deny the PRD application.

The clause in Paragraph 19(e) must have been specifically bargained for between the parties, as opposed to
being a standard clause included in PRDs routinely at the time, because Ch. 19.29 in 1994 actually
permitted transferring densities between areas. LMC 19.29.10(F) stated:

Densities are for an entire Planned Residential Development. As a result, if there are less
units in the first phase of the development than otherwise allowed, a transfer of the number
of units may be allowed to subsequent development phases.

A. As a contract, the PRD would likely be interpreted to permit moving densities, despite the change
in the municipal code.

It is a basic tenet of contract interpretation that “[t]he law in force at the time the contract was made
became part of contracts executed thereunder, and continues in force for the benefit of persons entitled
thereto, until the engagements of the contract are fully performed.”® Additionally, “[i]f the parties to a
contract clearly and unequivocally incorporate by reference into their contract some other document, that

8 State ex rel. Washington Mut. Sav. Bank v. City of Bellingham, 8 Wn.2d 233, 248, 111 P.2d 781, 788 (1941).



164

March 12, 2020

Page 4 of 6

document becomes part of their contract.”® Finally, Washington courts have embraced “the rule that if one

voluntarily puts it out of his power to do what he has agreed, he breaks his contract....”*°

The law at the time the Development Contract was approved explicitly permitted moving units between
PRD areas. The Development Contract modified this slightly to permit moving densities between areas
subject to a public hearing, as provided by the then-current LMC 19.29.050, which it incorporated by
reference. The City then adopted a new ordinance, which, if applied to the RB PRD, would result in the City
breaching this provision of the Development Contract.

If it applied the 2006 ordinance to the RB PRD, a court would almost certainly find that the City “voluntarily
put[] it out of [its] power” to honor clause 19(e) of the Development Contract, and that such action
constituted a breach of the Development Contract. A court would likely require the City to honor clause
19(e) and hold a public hearing on transferring densities within the RB PRD to remedy that breach.
Alternatively, a court could award RB Development damages for the breach, which would amount to the
difference in profit between a 41-unit development and the development RB Development could actually
build without transferring densities into Area B.

Since the City is a public entity, it is additionally subject to the requirements of the Washington State
Constitution. Those obligations are described more fully in the next section.

B. Imposition of the prohibition on moving densities between areas of the PRD, which was codified
in 2006, would likely be a violation of the Contracts Clause of the Washington State Constitution.

Article 1, Section 23 of the Washington State Constitution, like Article 1, Section 10, Clause 1 of the United
States Constitution, prohibits impairment of obligations of contracts,! including obligations of contracts
made by the jurisdiction implementing the new law. It is likely that for Lynden to now prohibit transferring
densities within the RB PRD, where the Development Contract specifically allows transferring densities,
would be unconstitutional.

Courts have different tests for when a private contract is infringed upon versus when a public contract is
infringed upon. A governmental entity is held to a higher standard when its own ordinance could impair a
contract to which it is a party.'? “The test for analyzing impairment of public contracts has three parts. First,
the court must determine whether a contractual relationship exists; second, the court must determine
whether the legislation substantially impairs the contractual relationship; third, when a state impairs its
own contracts, the court must determine if the impairment was reasonable and necessary to serve a
legitimate public purpose.”?

® Washington State Major League Baseball Stadium Pub. Facilities Dist. v. Huber, Hunt & Nichols-Kiewit Const. Co., 176 Wn.2d 502,
517,296 P.3d 821, 829 (2013).

9 Vance v. Mut. Gold Corp., 6 Wn.2d 466, 475, 108 P.2d 799, 804 (1940).

11 “Obligations of contracts” refers to contract parties’ legal obligation to perform the duties specified in the contract.
This is as opposed to the agreement the parties reach itself. Governments may and routinely do limit what parties may
actually agree to in a contract.

12 Caritas Servs., Inc. v. Dep't of Soc. & Health Servs., 123 Wn.2d 391, 403, 869 P.2d 28, 35 (1994).

13 1d., citing Carlstrom v. State, 103 Wash.2d 391, 694 P.2d 1 (1985); United States Trust Co. v. New Jersey, 431 U.S. 1, 97 S.Ct. 1505
(1977).



165

March 12, 2020

Page 5 of 6

Regarding the first prong of the test, Washington courts define “contract” as “an agreement of two or more
minds, upon sufficient consideration, to do or not to do certain acts.”** There can be little doubt that the
Development Contract is a contract. The contract reduces to writing the agreement by which, in
consideration of the development specifications contained therein, the City would allow the development
of the RB PRD.

Second, “[a] contract is impaired by a statute which alters its terms, imposes new conditions or lessens its
value.”*® “Impairment may be substantial if the complaining party relied on the supplanted portions of the
contract.”® Statutes and ordinances have been found to substantially impair contracts where the change in
law resulted in: a reduction in expected compensation by $175,000; a requirement to annex into a city,
where that requirement was not present when a ULID was imposed and property owners paid their ULID
assessments;*® or a prohibition on granting franchises to all utility providers except one, where the city
previously granted a franchise to a different utility provider.®

Here, it is likely that a court would agree the City’s subsequent prohibition on moving densities within the
PRD substantially impairs RB Development’s right under the Development Contract to have an amendment
to relocate densities considered. It is true that RB Development has not specifically exercised this right in
the past. RB Development has, however, made significant amendments to the PRD in other ways that have
impacted the distribution of its densities. It appears that some of the areas themselves may have had their
boundaries adjusted. And, when considering the amendment to allow the Christian Health Care Center, the
Planning Commission noted that the two parcels within Area B the development was to be on had been
allocated 76 units, but still permitted the 142-bed project. The ability to move units between areas of the
PRD is flexibility that, as evidenced by the present action, has real monetary value to RB Development.

Third, “[e]ven if a substantial impairment of contract occurs, however, it may nonetheless be constitutional
if it was reasonable and necessary to achieve a legitimate public purpose.”? This inquiry, in turn, is
analyzed using five factors: “(1) the emergency nature of the legislation; (2) whether the state had
previously regulated the subject activity; (3) whether the impact is generalized or specifically directed
toward a narrow class; (4) whether the reliance on pre-existing rights was both actual and reasonable; and
(5) whether the challenged law worked a severe, permanent, and immediate change in those relationships
reasonably relied upon.”?

Here, the third prong leans toward the City’s new ordinance being unconstitutional as applied to the RB
PRD, but not as certainly as the previous two. First, the ordinance was not passed in response to a true
public emergency. This weighs against the ordinance being constitutional. Second, PRDs are and were fairly

141d.

15 Ketcham v. King Cty. Med. Serv. Corp., 81 Wn.2d 565, 576, 502 P.2d 1197, 1203 (1972), citing Tremper v. Northwestern Mut. Life
Ins. Co., 11 Wash.2d 461, 119 P.2d 707 (1941).

16 caritas Servs., Inc.,123 Wn.2d at 405.

17 Caritas Servs., Inc., supra

18 Vine St. Commercial P'ship v. City of Marysville, 98 Wn. App. 541, 553, 989 P.2d 1238, 1244 (1999)
19 City of Tuckwila, supra

20 Caritas Servs., Inc., 123 Wn.2d at 411.

21 Cycle Barn, Inc. v. Arctic Cat Sales Inc., 701 F. Supp. 2d 1197, 1203 (W.D. Wash. 2010).



166

March 12, 2020

Page 6 of 6

significantly regulated by the Lynden Municipal Code, but are not subject the same level of regulation as
subdivisions. We find this factor to be neutral. Third, the prohibition on moving densities presumably has a
fairly narrow impact, as there are few PRDs in Lynden. This weighs against the ordinance’s constitutionality
as applied. Fourth, there is some evidence that RB Development has been acting in reasonable reliance on
the ability to move densities, but it is also undisputed that this is the first instance of RB Development
moving densities. This factor is neutral. Fifth, the ordinance does not really impose severe, permanent, and
immediate change. RB Development is limited to placing an additional 22 units on the property, instead of
the desired 41. This weighs in favor of constitutionality.

1. The Developer and City Council might be able to agree to abandon the Development Contract
for further development.

In general, parties to a contract may, upon mutual agreement, rescind that contract.?? However,
Washington courts favor maintaining the integrity of PUDs. For example, in one case, a tract that had been
designated as green space in a PUD was foreclosed upon due to failure to pay taxes; the court held that the
tract would retain its green space designation even after the foreclosure sale.? If the City and RB
Development mutually decided to abandon the PRD, there is a question as to whether a court would find
that action valid. Unfortunately, the courts have not yet had an opportunity to rule on this issue.

CONCLUSION

At the time RB Development entered into its Development Contract with the City in 1994, the City Code
expressly provided that densities were established for the entire PRD, and that increased density may be
transferred from early phases of the development to later phases. LMC 19.29.100.F (circa 1994).
Furthermore, and perhaps most importantly, such density transfers are expressly allowed under the
Development Contract. Therefore, we conclude that RB Development retains a contract right to transfer
densities to later developments within the PRD. This contract right is not only enforceable at law by RB
Development, but a breach thereof by the City would likely violate the “Contracts Clause” of the
Washington state constitution.

22 See e.g. Pavey v. Collins, 31 Wn.2d 864, 870, 199 P.2d 571, 574 (1948).
23 City of Olympia v. Palzer, 107 Wn.2d 225, 728 P.2d 135 (1986).



CITY OF LYNDEN
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION #19-03

A resolution of recommendation for approval of the Planned Residential
Development (PRD) Amendment # 19-01 for RB Development, to the Lynden
City Council.

WHEREAS, Pacific Surveying and Engineering, Inc, hereinafter called the
“Proponent,” submitted a complete application to the City of Lynden, hereinafter called
the “City,” for an amendment to the RB Development Planned Residential Development
(PRD). The amendment would allow for the construction of a senior housing complex on
the Property, which is already improved with multiple apartment buildings.

WHEREAS, the application was determined to be complete on July 31, 2019, and
the notice of application was published in the Lynden Tribune on August 14, 2019; and

WHEREAS, the Proponents have provided the City with an affidavit of posting for the
notice of application and public hearing in three locations near the subject property, and
the receipts for the certified mailing of said notice to all property owners within three
hundred feet of the subject property; and

WHEREAS, an open record hearing was held before the Planning Commission on
October 10, 2019, at the City Hall Annex located at 205 4" Street, Lynden, WA. The
Planning Commission recommended denial of the PRD Amendment application as
outlined in PC Resolution 19-04.

WHEREAS, on December 2, 2019, the said application went before the Lynden City
Council, and the Council having fully and duly considered the amendment application,
the Planning Commission recommendation, and Staff conditions.

WHEREAS, Council found that since the Planning Director did not supply a
recommendation to the Planning Commission at the October 10 meeting, the
Commission could not have considered staff’s conditions which were proposed to the
Council. Council agreed that they would benefit from the Planning Commission’s review
of the Directors proposed conditions, as well as the Planning Commission’s
recommendation on whether or not such conditions should result in approval, prior to
Council making a final decision on the application.

WHEREAS, on January 7, 2020, the Lynden City Council issued a Remand Order
to the Planning Commission for further proceedings as attached.

WHEREAS, on February 12, 2020, the legal notice for the remand hearing was
published in the Lynden Tribune and the proponent sent certified mailings of said notice
to all property owners within three hundred feet of the subject property; and

WHEREAS, the Lynden Planning Commission held a public hearing on February 27,
2020, at the City of Lynden, City Hall Annex, 205 4" Street, Lynden, Washington, to
accept public testimony on the proposed PRD Amendment request, and that meeting was
duly recorded,;

WHEREAS, the revised request now has a unit count of 41 units rather than 50.
The maximum building height has been reduced to 41 feet rather than 45 feet. The

167




front setback has been increased to 20 feet rather than 15 feet. Pedestrian
improvements along Aaron Drive have been suggested which could include enhanced
crosswalks and traffic calming measures.

WHEREAS, the Lynden Planning Commission has reviewed the staff conditions
as well as the revised request for the proposed PRD Amendment as required under
LMC 19.29.060(J) where code requires that the project meet one or more of the five
criteria listed there. And found that a majority of Planning Commissioners agreed the
request satisfies the criteria listed below:

19.29.060 (J)(3): The modification of minimum standards is necessary to permit
reasonable development as a result of unique characteristics of the property or the
proposed uses; and

19.29.060 (J)(4): The modification of building height (subject to 19.29.060(2)) or
building setbacks where reasonably necessary due to arrangement of buildings and
open spaces as they relate to various uses within or adjacent to the planned
development; provided that any such modification shall be consistent with subsection
(A) herein;

WHEREAS, the Lynden Planning Commission has also reviewed the staff conditions
and the design criteria under LMC 19.29.110 where code requires that the project meet
two or more of the seven criteria. A majority of the Planning Commissioners found that
if the proposed transfer of unused units from other areas of the PRD to the subject
property is found to be legally permissible under LMC 19.29.120, the request satisfies
the criteria as described below:

19.29.110(A)(2): Achieving the allowable density for the subject property; and

19.29.110(A)(3): Providing housing types that effectively serve the affordable housing
needs of the community.

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission agreed that the motion was conditioned on a
supportive legal interpretation of the transfer units within the PRD. So that if the transfer
of units is determined to be prohibited, the request does not satisfy the criteria as
described in LMC 19.29.110(A)(2) and should not continue as proposed.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Lynden Planning Commission to
recommend approval by a vote of 4-2 of the request to amend the RB Development
Planned Residential Development on the condition stated above.

PASSED by the Planning Commission of the City of Lynden, Whatcom County, at their
meeting held the 27th day of February 2020.

Diane Veltkamp, Chairperson, Heidi Gudde, AICP
Lynden Planning Commission Planning Director

168




169

CITY OF LYNDEN

PLANNING DEPARTMENT
360-354-5532

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES
7:30 PM February 27, 2020
City Hall Annex

1. CALL TO ORDER
Planning Commissioners introduced themselves to Nikki Turner, new commissioner

2. ROLL CALL

Present: Tim Faber, Blair Scott, Nikki Turner, Diane Veltkamp, Gerald Veltkamp, Bryan
Korthuis and Lynn Templeton.

Absent with notice: None

Staff Present: Gudde, Planning Director and Timmer, City Planner, Martin City Admin.

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A. January 23, 2020

Templeton motioned to approve the January 23, 2020, Planning Commission Minutes
as submitted. Seconded by G. Veltkamp and the motion passed 6-0.

4. DECLARATION OF CONFLICT
None of the Commissioners reported a conflict of interest or ex parte conflict.

D. Veltkamp reported that she spoke with N. Turner last week regarding being on the
planning commission and how a meeting runs but not specifically about this project.

5. PUBLIC HEARING
A. PRD Amendment #19-01, RB Development / Heritage Park, 801 Aaron Drive

D. Veltkamp opened the public hearing. She explained that the proposal came before the PC
earlier, but the City Council remanded the proposal back to the PC. Staff had proposed to
the Council that there may be concessions the applicant would propose that would address
the concerns that the PC had raised.

Gudde addressed the public and Planning Commission regarding the process of reviewing a
PRD amendment. It needs to follow the PRD code, not necessarily the original development
agreement. Noted that infill development and a variety of housing types, and senior housing
are not just permitted by the City’s Comprehensive Plan and code but are encouraged.
Gudde stated that staff believed the project warranted approval.

300 4™ Street, Lynden, WA 98264
www.lyndenwa.org



170

Scott Goodall, Impact Design, representing the developer Hollander Investments. Scott
submitted a written proposal outlining his presentation. The presentation detailed the
background, compared the project to adjacent developments, and explained how the project
meets the various code items (PRD purpose — LMC 19.29.010), (PRD minimum standards —
LMC 19.29.060), and criteria for approval (LMC 19.29.110).

Questions from the Commissioners:

T. Faber — where might this garden be? Are there plans specifically for it? Goodall shows a
location in the courtyard where this would be located.

D. Veltkamp — questions the number of allowed units remaining in this PRD. Looked back at
the original PRD, it was divided into 5 distinct areas. They were specified for a particular
number of units. Bender Plaza removed 40 units. The PRD code (LMC 19.29.120(c))
specifically states that the final development plan may not be amended to transfer units of
density from one area to another. Therefore, there are only 2 units left in this PRD. How do
we deal with that in light of this proposal?

D Veltkamp: Why is the stairway is proposed to be open? Scott Goodall responds that it is
an architectural design feature. It could be covered.

D Veltkamp: How large is the elevator? How many wheelchairs can it fit?

Mark Hollander, 359 E Wiser Lake Road: Addresses the previous questions from the
Commissioners: He believes in this project and thinks it addresses a need. Whatever
happens tonight, he will continue to search for a way forward. The elevator is what would be
required by code. The stairway design is intentional.

Speaking in Favor:

Jerry Blankers - one of the original RB Development owners. He explained the process of
how the original application went forward. That it was intended as a development where
residents could age in place. This one was amended and changed several times because it
has developed over a long period of time. Thinks this is a great addition to the development.

Lynn VanderVelden — is in favor of the project, the location, geography, proximity to transit,
parks. Thinks this is a good thing for the community and the neighborhood.

Speaking in Opposition

Ron Hendricks, neighbor: Architecture is imposing, too close to the street and the scale is
large. Why don’t they fit units within the existing courtyard? This project is about making
money. Parking — there are already a lot of cars in that area, many parked on the street and
in the Bender Fields parking lot. This will exacerbate the parking problem already there. The
people speaking in opposition are seniors.

300 4™ Street, Lynden, WA 98264
www.lyndenwa.org
Page 2 of 6



171

Linda Maarhuis: representing the Community Garden across the street. They are concerned
with parking in that area. The people gardening there often park on the street. Aesthetically,
the building is too big.

Kathy Knutson: Lives in the PRD and works at the CHCC. Parking is a problem already.
Safety is a concern, there are many elderly folks in the area, and this is a busy intersection.
The Park gets very busy during certain times of the year and so many people use Aaron
Drive. Additional vehicles and traffic resulting from the project is a concern.

D. Veltkamp: Have you heard a need of a spouse or family members living there?
Kathy doesn’t see that as a need.

Annette Postma, townhome across from Lynden Manor. Concern about safety of the kids
getting on the bus in the area. She doesn’t think the new building is adding to the aesthetics
of the area.

Judy Gray, registered nurse and worked at the CHCC is a senior. She doesn’t think a
spouse would rent a unit next to the CHCC to be near there. Concerned about future car
prowls.

Ellen Campbell, unit 103. Doesn’t think it looks nice, it doesn’t fit within the neighborhood.
Wondering what an affordable unit would cost. Parking is an issue there.

Nancy Roak, neighbor. Agrees with what was stated by the others.

Karen Hendricks, neighbor. They should stay within the code limits. Not permitted reduced
setbacks, etc. The City shouldn’t make exceptions for this development.

Proponent has a chance to respond to the concerns.

Mark Hollander. What is the need? This is a slam dunk location for senior housing. One
concern stated was the return on investment. Of course, he is not interested taking a loss on
this project. He is willing to take this risk, though, in providing this product to the community.
Street parking - that is a community issue. If the public doesn’t want parking on Aaron Drive
or overnight in Bender Fields that needs to be addressed with the City and is not relevant to
this proposal. The project meets and exceeds parking code. The Community Garden
concern is not relevant to the project at hand as it is a use that Sonlight Church has chosen
to implement but necessarily the highest and best use for that area. He understands that this
project impacts the existing tenants. That is a market risk that he is willing to take and will
work to mitigate the impact to the existing tenants. The density is reasonable for a
multifamily project.

B. Scott — what is affordable? Can the applicant define it? It is frequently being stated as a
reason to approve this project.

300 4™ Street, Lynden, WA 98264
www.lyndenwa.org

Page 3 of 6




172

Mark Hollander — it is relative. This project is not proposing subsidizing rent. He, as a
developer is not getting subsidies for the construction of this project. The market
ultimately determines the cost. The way they are doing this is by size of units and
building efficiency. He also believes it is a question of supply. There is a housing
shortage and projects like this help alleviate that demand. He believes these units will
be 20-30% cheaper than a comparable unit in Bellingham. It is expensive to build this
type of building. Again, this is a risk that he is willing to take.

D. Veltkamp — height is 40 ft with an extension. The building will block sunlight, block views
for the existing tenants.

Mark Hollander states he understands that it will impact existing tenants, specifically 4
units, but as the landlord it is up to him to deal with those individual impacts. Also,
while it will impact 4 existing tenants, the project adds 41 new units that are south
facing, have a great view and will be in a new building. It is a net benefit.

T. Faber — Asked for clarification on setbacks shown on the plan.

S. Goodall clarifies those and responds broadly to earlier stated concerns. The project
is proposing to increase safety in this area with a new crosswalk on Aaron Drive.

Ron Hendricks, neighbor who previously spoke in opposition: Requests and is given the
opportunity to respond to Mark Hollander’s rebuttal of the statements of opposition.

D. Veltkamp — Ask the applicant if he has done any studies to see that seniors actually want
this type of product?

Mark Hollander says that this is a product that he believes is needed and that it is up
to him as the property owner to take that risk.

Templeton motioned to close the public hearing. Seconded by G. Veltkamp and the
motion passed 6-0.

Planning Commission Discussion:

With the public hearing closed, discussion moved to the Planning Commission, to consider
the criteria as specified. The commission discussed the architecture of the building, the
policies and statements of the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the location of the proposal,
the visual impact to the neighborhood, and the direct impact to the current tenants. In
general, they thought that this was a better proposal that what came to them in
December, but still have concerns about the project. The criteria of modifying the
minimum design standards of a PRD and the criteria for approval were discussed by all
of the Commissioners. *Much of this discussion was difficult to portray via written
notes. An audio recording of this meeting is available on the City website.”

300 4™ Street, Lynden, WA 98264
www.lyndenwa.org
Page 4 of 6



173

The Commission discussed the considerations of departing from the minimum standards
(LMC 19.29.060 (J)). Some felt that the building met condition (1) in that it created more
appealing architecture than the current condition but not all agreed. Most
Commissioners asserted that it did not preserve critical areas because there are no
critical areas on the proposed site. The majority of the of the commission found that the
request satisfies at least 2 of these considerations (as are listed below):

(3) The modification of minimum standards is necessary to permit reasonable
development as a result of the unique characteristics of the property or the proposed
uses; and

(4) The modification of a building height (subject to 19.29.0606(2)) or building setbacks
where reasonable necessary due to arrangement of buildings and open spaces are they
relate to various uses within or adjacent to the planned development; provided that any
such modification shall be consistent with subsection (a) herein;

Additionally, the Commission discussed the criteria for amending a PRD (LMC 19.29.110).
Again, the Commission discussed these elements and a majority agreed that it meets 2
of the 7 criteria in this section.

(2) Achieving the allowable density for the subject property; and

(3) Providing housing types that effectively serve the affordable housing needs of the
community.

Furthermore, the Commission had significant concerns about whether this proposal is even
permitted because of the prohibition in code of transferring density unit from one area of
a PRD to another per LMC 19.29.120.

M. Martin proposed that the City should seek legal advice on this point and, due to extended
process that has already occurred, that the Commission should consider and make a
decision on the project knowing that legal clarification can come before it goes to
Council. Any decision would assume the transfer was permitted. A transfer that is not
permitted, would, of course, significantly alter the proposal by not allowing the proposed
number of units.

Prior to making a motion, the Commissioners stated how they anticipated they would be
voting regarding this proposal.

Faber motioned to recommend approval of PRD Amendment #19-01, RB Development /
Heritage Park, as revised and presented according to the staff memo to Council dated
December 2, 2019, and relevant findings, conditions and recommendations of the
Technical Review Committee Report dated September 17, 2019, and further subject to
the following condition:

300 4™ Street, Lynden, WA 98264

www.lyndenwa.org
Page 5 of 6



174

e The question regarding permitting the transfer of density units within a PRD area
must be reviewed by City Legal Counsel. LMC 19.29.120 ©.

Seconded by Korthuis, and the motion carries 4-2.
The Commission noted the following Findings of Fact to support their decision:

e The Lynden Planning Commission has reviewed the staff conditions as well as the
revised request for the proposed PRD Amendment as required under LMC
19.29.060(J) where code requires that the project meet one or more of the five criteria
listed there. And found that a majority of Planning Commissioners agreed the request
satisfies the criteria listed below:

19.29.060 (J)(3): The modification of minimum standards is necessary to permit
reasonable development as a result of unique characteristics of the property or the
proposed uses; and

19.29.060 (J)(4): The modification of building height (subject to 19.29.060(2)) or
building setbacks where reasonably necessary due to arrangement of buildings and
open spaces as they relate to various uses within or adjacent to the planned
development; provided that any such modification shall be consistent with subsection
(A) herein;

e The Lynden Planning Commission has also reviewed the staff conditions and the
design criteria under LMC 19.29.110 where code requires that the project meet two or
more of the seven criteria. A majority of the Planning Commissioners found that if the
proposed transfer of unused units from other areas of the PRD to the subject property
is found to be legally permissible, the request satisfies the criteria as described below:

19.29.110(A)(2): Achieving the allowable density for the subject property; and

19.29.110(A)(3): Providing housing types that effectively serve the affordable housing
needs of the community.

6. COMMISSIONERS CORNER

The next Planning Commission is scheduled for March 12, 2020.

7. ADJOURNMENT

Motion to adjourn by Korthuis / Second by Templeton. Meeting adjourned at
10:35 pm.

300 4™ Street, Lynden, WA 98264
www.lyndenwa.org
Page 6 of 6



175

CITY OF LYNDEN

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Meeting Date: March 16, 2020
Name of Agenda ltem: | Reinstate Parks Maintenance Supervisor Position
Section of Agenda: New Business
Department: Parks
Council Committee Review: Legal Review:
[J Community Development [ Public Safety [ Yes - Reviewed
[ Finance [ Public Works ] No - Not Reviewed
Parks ] Other: ] Review Not Required
Attachments:

Summary Statement:

When the Parks Maintenance Supervisor retired in 2006, for a variety of reasons the position was eliminated
and replaced with a Full time Maintenance Il position.

Since that time, the City has added Patterson Park, Scenic Estates park, Lynden Jim Park, and the Benson,
Dickinson, and Glenning properties and the department has taken over landscaping duties at the Library,
Annex, City hall, Fire station, Police department , and added various sections of trails.

In 2006, the department had 6 full time and 6 part time employees, in 2019 the department had 6 full time
employees and 5 part time employees.

The budget for 2020 asked for 6 full time employees and 6 part time employees to help with the additional
work required to maintain the added responsibilities.

Our staff is stretched far beyond the capabilities of providing the excellent service we wish to provide.
Therefore, we are requesting to reinstate the Maintenance Supervisor position this season to help with the
additional scheduling of tasks, to oversee the work being done, and act as the lead person in supervising the
parks staff and setting direction and policy for the department staff.

Cost to implement this addition to the payroll would be offset somewhat by reducing the requested 6
seasonal positions down to 4, and would require an additional $30-35,000 to make this position possible.

Parks Committee has reviewed this request and is in agreement with the recommendation and asked to
forward the request to full council for approval.

Recommended Action:

Motion to reinstate the Parks Maintenance Supervisor position and add additional funding to the budget to
pay the costs related to the addition.




CITY OF LYNDEN

JOB DESCRIPTION

TITLE: Park Maintenance Supervisor DEPARTMENT: Parks Department
FLSA: Exempt — Salaried UNION: Non-Represented
REPORTS TO: Parks Director

SUPERVISES: Park Maintenance Workers (Full-time and Seasonal)

GENERAL PURPOSE:

Under general direction of the Parks Director, supervises and coordinates the overall activities
in the maintenance of the City of Lynden’s Park Department. Position will ensure efficient
maintenance operations in the Structures and Facilities program area for diverse city park
system which includes neighborhood parks, community parks, open space, trails and
greenways, and civic greenspace. This is a working supervisory position.

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBLITIES

Supervision of Staff and Activities

¢ Plans, schedules, and directs day-to-day activities for assigned personnel.

e Supervises, trains, and evaluates the performance of assigned personnel.

¢ Monitors and ensures assigned staff compliance with City/departmental policies,
procedures and regulatory requirements.

o Prepares, updates, and maintains assigned staff schedules, assigning work duties,
review and approval of timecards, and monitoring the quality and progress of work
performed by employees.

e Provides both technical and safety guidance to assigned staff, ensuring compliance with
training requirements, safety standards and regulations.

e Promotes and supports teamwork within the team and with other departments

Budget and Administrative Duties

e Prepares, administers, and monitors Park Department maintenance budgets and
reviews and monitors monthly budget reports
Assists the Park Director in preparation of annual budget.

¢ Maintains various records relating to equipment, supplies, and maintenance schedule
reports.

e Participates in the development, implementation, administration, and review of Parks
system policies and procedures.

e Procures materials and supplies needed for program operation following established
guidelines for purchasing.

e Coordinate small to medium maintenance and capital improvement projects. May work
with professional consultants and City specialists to coordinate design, requests for
proposal, and contractor selection.

e Assist in preparation of contracts and ensures implementation of project goals and
budgetary requirements, monitors contractor performance during construction and at
completion of project for adherence to expectations.

February 2020 Maintenance Supervisor - Parks Page 1




Operational and Maintenance Work

¢ Manages the Structures and Facilities program areas. Establishes goals and objectives
supporting the evaluation and maintenance and repair of park structures and facilities
including restrooms, playgrounds, shelters, buildings and electrical, and water/sewer and
mechanical systems.

o Develops, recommends and implements a comprehensive facility management plan.
Ensures that all facilities and systems are maintained to a high standard.

o Oversees and participates in grounds maintenance tasks for the Parks,Library, City Hall,
City Annex, Fire Station, and Police Station, including mowing, trimming, weeding etc.
Coordinates with staff from other program areas to complete specialty work such as
hazard tree removal, tree pruning, and storm damage cleanup.

o Develops program area goals and objectives, organizes and delegates day-to-day
operations and special projects. Develops policies, procedures, and best practices for
program area Ensures work standards adhere to regulations, policies, and procedures.

e Oversees implementation and use of computerized maintenance management system
for program area. Manages utilization of maintenance system to track work requests,
maintenance records on structures, systems, and facilities, cost effectiveness of
servicing, and life cycle costs of facilities, equipment, and mechanical systems.

e Serves as security manager for parks lock system, which includes the development and
implementation of all keyed entry, and alarmed systems within Lynden Parks and
Recreation.

¢ Investigates and responds to all public requests, issues and complaints in a courteous
prompt manner. Prepares correspondence and conducts research as needed.

e Performs required labor involved in various construction and maintenance projects,
working in compliance with City standard operating procedures

OTHER DUTIES
o Represents the City and/or the Parks Department to outside agencies and the general
public as needed.
e Attends and participates in a variety of meetings pertaining to Parks Department matters
and issues as needed.
e Serves on various City employee or other committees as assigned.
Performs other related duties as needed and assigned.

MINIMUM QUALIEFICATIONS

Education and Experience
e Bachelor's degree in Parks and Recreation or related field or equivalent experience;
AND
e Minimum four (4) years of experience in the Parks and Recreation maintenance field
with at least one year of experience in supervision and project management, including
developing and managing project budgets; OR
e Equivalent combinations of education and experience that provide the incumbent with the
necessary qualifications may be considered.
Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities

Knowledge of:
e Current working knowledge of applicable federal, State and local codes, laws, rules and

regulations related to parks and recreation.

177

February 2020 Maintenance Supervisor - Parks Page 2




Current working knowledge of all building trades; carpentry, construction, plumbing, and
electrical.

Working knowledge and operation of boom trucks, genie lefts, tractors, lawn mowers,
weed eaters, chainsaws, mowers, power tools, etc....

Knowledge of field/ turf/lawn maintenance, soil restoration, fertilizer application

Fiscal and records management and ability to develop, prepare and implement program
budgets.

Safety hazards, precautions and procedures related to assigned program area

Skills & Ability to:

Communicate effectively in writing and verbally.

Ability to train, supervise, and evaluate maintenance crew.

Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with other employees,
other departments and the public.

Ability to calmly communicate with upset and/or angry citizens, to explain city policies and
problem resolution.

Ability to work under pressure and switch priorities as needed.

Ability to organize and oversee a high volume of work activities.

Represent the City in a positive and professional manner.

Support and promote the City’s mission, vision, and core values in all aspects of job
performance.

Special Requirements

Valid Washington State Driver's License and a good driving record (Candidates must
submit a three-year driving abstract at the time of hire)

Possess or obtain within one year of hire date a Class B Commercial Driver's License
and maintain same throughout tenure.

Employment contingent upon passing a background check including a criminal
conviction, Child and Adult Abuse records check, pre-employment drug screen and local
background check.

Must secure and maintain a valid First Aid and CPR certification within 6 months of hire.
Possess a Pesticide Spraying License obtain within 6 months of hire.

Must secure and maintain Certified Playground Safety Inspector (CPSI) Certification
within 6 months of hire.

Possess (or obtain within six months of hire date) CPR and First Aid certifications and
maintain them throughout tenure.

Must be able to work a non-standard work schedule as needed, including evenings,
weekends, and holidays.

TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT USED

Persons in this classification are required to routinely operate the following equipment: pickup
trucks; lawn and landscaping equipment, including tractors, mowers, airifier, chain saw, edgers,
weed trimmers, electric motors, pumps, sprinklers, irrigation systems; miscellaneous hand and
power tools for turf maintenance, carpentry, painting, plumbing, electrical, and cement finishing
work; janitorial equipment including floor buffers, steam cleaner, carpet cleaners, washers,
vacuums, mops, brooms, and dusting equipment

178

February 2020 Maintenance Supervisor - Parks Page 3




WORKING ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS

While performing the duties of this job, the employee regularly works in outdoor weather
conditions and near moving mechanical parts. The employee frequently works in high,
precarious places and is frequently exposed to wet and/or humid conditions, fumes or airborne
particles, toxic or caustic chemicals, and vibration. The employee is occasionally exposed to risk
of electrical shock. The noise level in the work environment is usually loud.

The employee must frequently lift and/or move up to 50 pounds and occasionally lift and/or
move more than 100 pounds. Specific vision abilities required by this job include close vision,
distance vision, color vision, peripheral vision, depth perception, and the ability to adjust focus.
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to reach, bend,
kneel, turn, twist, and to use hands to finger, handle, or feel objects, tools or controls.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to use hands and
fingers to handle, feel or operate objects, tools, or controls, and reach with hands and arms.
The employee is frequently required to stand, talk, hear, walk, climb, balance, stoop, kneel,
crouch, crawl, detect odors; and must frequently lift and/or move up to 60 pounds and
occasionally lift and/or move up to 40 pounds. Specific vision abilities required by this job
include close vision, distance vision, color vision, peripheral vision, depth perception, and the
ability to adjust focus.

The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an
employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential
functions.

The duties listed above are intended only as general illustrations of the various types of work
that may be performed. The omission of specific statements of duties does not exclude them
from the position if the work is similar, related, or a logical assignment to the position.

This job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer and
employee and is subject to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and
requirements of the job change.

179

JOB DESCRIPTION APPROVALS

Approved By: Date:
Human Resources
Date:
Department Head
Date:

City Administrator

February 2020 Maintenance Supervisor - Parks Page 4




180

CITY OF LYNDEN

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Meeting Date: March 16, 2020

Name of Agenda ltem: | Interim Countywide Planning Policy Interlocal Agreement
Section of Agenda: New Business

Department: Planning Department

Council Committee Review: Legal Review:
Community Development [ Public Safety Yes - Reviewed

[] Finance Public Works 1 No - Not Reviewed
[ Parks ] Other: ] Review Not Required
Attachments:

M. Aamot memo to County Council, Proposed Interim County-Wide Planning Policy, Points of review by B.
Carmichael

Summary Statement:

The attached memo dated February 4, 2020 to the Whatcom County Council from the County’s Planning
and Development Services Department describes the statutory background for establishing Countywide
Planning Policies. It also details the work of the City/County Planner group work to establish interim
procedures to amend the Countywide Planning Policies (CWPPs). The resulting interlocal agreement is
attached.

The Whatcom County Council’s Special Committee of the Whole approved the interlocal agreement on
February 11, 2020 and requests that the Agreement be reviewed and ultimately approved by all the cities
prior to the end of March.

The City’s legal counsel has reviewed the document and found that, although specific sections could
benefit from clarification, the agreement could be signed so as not to delay the process (see attached
summary).

It's worth noting that the procedures for amending planning policies implemented here are considered
interim but needed in order to comply with the State mandated Buildable Lands Program. Ultimately,
using these procedures, policies regarding amendments would be permanently established by the County.

Recommended Action:

Motion to approve the interlocal agreement concerning interim procedures for amending countywide
planning policies and to approve the Mayor’s signature on the agreement.




CITY OF LYNDEN

PLANNING DEPARTMENT
Heidi Gudde, Planning Director
(360) 354 - 5532

Planning Department Memorandum

City Council

From: Heidi Gudde, Planning Director

Meeting Date: March 16, 2020

Legal Review of the CWPP Interlocal Agreement

181

From Bob Carmichael:

The below comments, if addressed, would improve the agreement. However, | am not insisting on
changes, as understand that this has been through a process and do not want to hold things up.

1. Section 3.cand 3.d. Recommendation. Section 3.c says the Planner Group’s recommendations

will be issued within 180 days of receiving the proposed amendments, but no deadline is
established for submitting proposed amendments. Arguably this is indirectly addressed in
Section 3.d, which says if the Planner Group does not make recommendation in the 180-day
period, the amendments will not be processed further unless the County Executive and majority
of City mayors agree to proceed with proposed amendments. But it would be better if a
deadline were established for submitting proposals to the Planner Group to avoid confusion,
and possibly last minute submittals that the Planner Group does not have sufficient time to
evaluate.

Section 3.d. Recommendation. Consider adding one of alternatives in underlined language to
last sentence of Section 3.d as follows: “The 180-day time period may be extended by 90 days
by majority vote of the eight jurisdictions so long as such vote takes place [before expiration of
the 180-day time period] or [not later than 60 days following expiration of 180-day time
period].” Presently, there is no time limit whatsoever, after the 180-day limit has expired, on a
dead or rejected policy being resurrected by County Executive or majority of City mayors.

Section 6. Whatcom County Council Review. Can the County Council committee of the whole
change proposed amendments before voting whether or not to send the final draft
amendments for the cities for review and approval? It does not say.

General Comment. The statute governing interlocal agreements requires a provision addressing
financing, but there is no such provision in this ILA. This could be remedied by adding a section
that says something along the following lines: “All parties shall bear their own costs of
participation and obligations under the terms of this Agreement.”

300 4t Street, Lynden, WA 98264
www.lyndenwa.org




WHATCOM COUNTY

Planning & Development Services
5280 Northwest Drive

Bellingham, WA 98226-9097
360-778-5900, TTY 800-833-6384
360-778-5901 Fax

Mark Personius
Director

Memorandum
February 4, 2020

TO: The Honorable Satpal Sidhu, Whatcom County Executive
The Honorable Whatcom County Council

FROM: Matt Aamot, Senior Planner
THROUGH: Mark Personius, Director

RE: Interim Interlocal Agreement Relating to Countywide Planning Policies

The Growth Management Act required the County to adopt countywide planning
policies in cooperation with the cities (RCW 36.70A.040(4) and RCW 36.70A.210).
Countywide planning policies establish a framework for developing city and county
comprehensive plans and ensuring these plans are consistent. The County Council
originally adopted countywide planning policies in 1993 and amended these policies
in 1997 and 2005.

The Washington State Legislature approved Engrossed Second Substitute Senate
Bill 5254 relating to the Growth Management Act’s “Review and Evaluation”
(buildable lands) program requirements in 2017. This legislation imposes new
requirements that Whatcom County must address, in close coordination with the
cities, over the next several years. One of these requirements is to amend the
countywide planning policies to establish the buildable lands program.

As the City/County Planner Group discussed the requirement to amend the
countywide planning policies, we came to the conclusion that we needed to
establish an interim procedure for making amendments. We established a
subcommittee that reviewed other jurisdictions’ procedures for countywide planning
policy amendments, drafted a proposed interlocal agreement, and brought it back
to the City/County Planner Group for consideration.

The County Council’s Special Committee of the Whole (SCOTW) met on September
10, 2019 and January 28, 2020 to discuss the draft interlocal agreement, and
expressed two general concerns:

1. Authority to Initiate Amendments — The SCOTW was concerned about
initiation of proposed countywide planning policy amendments by a non-
elected official (City Manager). On January 28, 2020, the SCOTW approved
a motion (6-1 vote) to remove “Any City Manager” from the Authority to
Initiate Amendment section (which is reflected in the draft
Interlocal). SCOTW indicated that a city manager could take a proposed
countywide planning policy amendment through their city council to initiate
the amendment.

182




Staff Comment: A city manager could be authorized to initiate countywide
planning policy amendments, but this would only start the review process.
The County Council and city councils would ultimately have to approve the
proposed amendments before they become effective. Additionally, the Blaine
City Manager wrote a letter dated October 29, 2019 (attached) indicating
that, under the city’s form of government, the City Manager is Blaine’s chief
executive officer. Blaine plans to send a representative to the February 11
SCOTW meeting to further discuss this issue.

. City Approval - The SCOTW was concerned about essentially ceding authority
to enact countywide planning policies to the cities, especially:

a. Bellingham’s ability to stop proposed countywide planning policies
without the support of any other city, and

b. Getting jurisdictions on board that represent a majority of the county-
wide population, while still providing a say to the small cities.

Staff Comment: The City/County Planner Group met again to discuss this
concern on January 31 and recommended several changes to the draft
interlocal agreement. We would note that countywide planning policies apply
to the County and all cities. Therefore, a collaborative process to amend
these policies is favored.

The City/County Planner Group is now recommending one of two methods to
ratify countywide planning policy amendments. In order to become effective,
the amendments would have to be approved by:

e Method 1 - Jurisdictions (the County and cities) representing at least 85%
of the total population of Whatcom County; or

e Method 2 - At least 75% of the jurisdictions, provided that Whatcom
County must be one of the jurisdictions to approve the amendments (i.e.,
the County and at least 5 of the 7 existing cities).

Under method 1, the County, the City of Bellingham and one or more small
cities (depending on population) would need to approve a countywide
planning policy amendment. Disapproval by the County, the City of
Bellingham, or a coalition of small cities would prevent the countywide
planning policies from being ratified under this method. However, there is
now a second method under which countywide planning policies could be
ratified.

Under method 2, the County and at least 5 of the seven cities would need to

approve a countywide planning policy amendment. Disapproval by the

County or a coalition of three small cities would prevent the countywide

planning policies from being ratified under this method. The chart below

shows the different possible routes to ratification. Please keep in mind that
2

183




ratification is only required under method 1 or method 2 for the amendments
to become effective. Additionally, Whatcom County is the only jurisdiction
that must approve the countywide planning policies amendments in every

184

scenario.
Approval by Ratification Ratification | Bellingham’s | % of County
under Method 1? under Approval Population
Method 2? Required? | Represented
County, Bellingham, Yes No Yes 88.51%
Ferndale
County, Bellingham, Lynden Yes No Yes 88.58%
County, Bellingham, Blaine, Yes No Yes 85.28%
and Everson, Nooksack, or
Sumas
County, Bellingham, and 4 Yes Yes Yes 87.23%
small cities
County and 5 small cities No Yes No 53.58%

NOTE: The "% of County Population Represented” is the minimum percentage of the countywide population
represented by the jurisdictions approving the amendments. For purposes of this chart, the County represents the
unincorporated population, which is 42.16% of the countywide population. Bellingham has 40% of the countywide
population.

The City/County Planner Group also recommended inserting a clause that the
Interlocal Agreement would expire on June 30, 2024 (the deadline for updating
comprehensive plans) if the countywide planning policies are not amended by this
date to include procedures for adopting future countywide planning policy
amendments.

County Planning and Development Services would like to discuss the proposed
interlocal agreement with the County Council’s Special Committee of the Whole on
February 11 to ascertain whether or not the Council has any concerns with the
revised proposal. The cities would then take the agreement through their
respective approval processes (and obtain signatures of the appropriate city
officials), before the agreement would come back to the County Council for a formal
vote and sighature by the County Executive.

Thank you for your review and consideration of the proposed interlocal agreement
between Whatcom County and the cities. We look forward to discussing it with you.




INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
WHATCOM COUNTY AND THE CITIES OF BELLINGHAM,
BLAINE, EVERSON, FERNDALE, LYNDEN, NOOKSACK, AND SUMAS
CONCERNING INTERIM PROCEDURES FOR AMENDING THE
COUNTYWIDE PLANNING POLICIES

This agreement is made by and between Whatcom County (herein after referred to as the
“County”) and the Cities of Bellingham, Blaine, Everson, Ferndale, Lynden, Nooksack, and
Sumas (herein after referred to as the “Cities”).

WHEREAS, the Growth Management Act (GMA) required the County to adopt
countywide planning policies in cooperation with the Cities (RCW 36.70A.040(4) and RCW
36.70A.210); and

WHEREAS, the GMA states countywide planning policies are used “. . . solely for
establishing a countywide framework from which county and city comprehensive plans are
developed and adopted pursuant to this chapter. This framework shall ensure that city and
county comprehensive plans are consistent . . .” (RCW 36.70A.210(1)); and

WHEREAS, the County Council adopted the original countywide planning policies in
April 1993 (Resolution 93-024); and

WHEREAS, the County Council amended the countywide planning policies in March
1997 (Resolution 97-011); and

WHEREAS, the County Council amended the countywide planning policies in
January 2005 (Ordinance 2005-022); and

WHEREAS, cooperative relationships and coordination between the County and
Cities are mutually beneficial; and

WHEREAS, the Cities and County desire to agree on an interim procedure for
amending the countywide planning policies in this interlocal agreement; and

WHEREAS, the County and Cities anticipate that new sections will be inserted into
the countywide planning policies establishing procedures for future amendments to the
countywide planning policies and addressing the GMA-mandated Review and Evaluation
(Buildable Lands) Program. Once the amendment procedures have been incorporated into
the countywide planning policies, this interlocal agreement will no longer be needed;

2020 Interlocal Agreement — Interim Procedures to Amend Countywide Planning Policies

1

185




NOW, THEREFORE, subject to the terms and conditions contained herein, the Cities
and County agree as follows:

Section 1. Interim Procedures for Amending the Countywide Planning Policies

The Cities and the County agree to the following interim procedures for amending the
countywide planning policies:

1. Authority to Initiate Amendment — Any of the following may initiate a
proposed amendment to the Countywide Planning Policies by submitting a written
proposal to the County Planning Director:

a.

b.

C.

d.

The Whatcom County Executive;
The Whatcom County Council,
Any City Council;

Any City Mayor.

2. Required Information - The proposed amendment shall include:

a.

b.

The language of the proposed amendment shown with underlining and
strikethroughs.

An explanation of the need for the proposed amendment. This may
include, as appropriate, the factors, changed conditions, data, analysis,
and/or experience with existing countywide planning policies that show a
need for the proposed amendment.

3. Recommendation - The County Planning Director shall refer proposed
amendments to the City/County Planner Group, which shall be comprised of the
planning directors or designees from the County and each of the seven Cities. The
City/County Planner Group will review and issue recommendations on the
proposed amendments as follows:

a.

The City/County Planner Group will strive to reach consensus but if
consensus cannot be reached, recommendations will be by majority vote of
the eight jurisdictions (the County and seven cities).

Any jurisdiction’s representative that cannot attend the meeting may vote
by e-mail sent to the County Planning Director.

2020 Interlocal Agreement — Interim Procedures to Amend Countywide Planning Policies

2

186




187

c. The City/County Planner Group’s recommendations will be issued within
180 days of receiving the proposed amendments. The process of forming
recommendations will allow time, within this 180-day period, for
individual jurisdictions to consult with their respective planning
commissions and/or elected officials, at the discretion of each jurisdiction.

d. If a majority of the City/County Planner Group votes against the proposed
amendments or if the City/County Planner Group does not make a
recommendation within the 180-day time period, the amendments will not
be processed further unless the County Executive and a majority of the city
mayors agree to proceed with the proposed amendments. The 180-day
time period may be extended by 90 days by majority vote of the eight
jurisdictions.

4. SEPA - Whatcom County will conduct SEPA review, if required, on the
recommended Countywide Planning Policy amendments.

5. Whatcom County Planning Commission Review — The Whatcom County
Planning Commission will hold a public hearing and issue recommendations on
the proposed countywide planning policy amendments. City planners will be
invited to the hearing.

6. Whatcom County Council Review — The County Council will invite County and
City planners to a committee of the whole meeting to discuss the proposed
countywide planning policy amendments. The County Council’s committee of
the whole will take a vote whether or not to send final draft countywide planning
policy amendments to the cities for review and approval.

7. City Approval Process — The respective city legislative authorities must act upon
final draft countywide planning policy amendments within 90 days of the County
Council vote to send the amendments to the cities for review and approval.

City approval means a vote by the legislative authority to approve or disapprove
the countywide planning policy amendments (up or down vote). Final draft
countywide planning policy amendments may not be modified during the city
approval process.

If a city does not notify the County Planning Director of the action taken within
the 90-day period, that city shall be deemed to have approved the amendments.

2020 Interlocal Agreement — Interim Procedures to Amend Countywide Planning Policies

3



8. Whatcom County Council Adoption — Following approval of the countywide
planning policy amendments by the cities under subsection 7 above, the County
Council may, after conducting a public hearing, adopt the countywide planning
policy amendments. Final draft countywide planning policy amendments may not
be modified during the County Council adoption process.

9. Ratified Amendments - In order to become effective, countywide planning
policy amendments must be approved (pursuant to subsection 7 and 8 above) by:

a. Jurisdictions (the County and cities) representing at least 85% of the total
population of Whatcom County; or

b. At least 75% of the jurisdictions, provided that Whatcom County must be
one of the jurisdictions to approve the amendments (i.e., the County and at
least 5 of the 7 existing cities).

10. Notification of Ratified Amendments - The County Planning Director shall
notify the Cities and the Governor’s office in writing within fourteen (14) days of
County Council adoption of the countywide planning policies, as set forth in
subsection 8 above.

Section 2. Effective Date, Duration and Termination

This interlocal agreement shall be effective upon signature by the Mayor and/or City
Manager of each of the seven Cities and the Whatcom County Executive.

This interlocal agreement shall remain in effect until June 30, 2024 or the countywide
planning policies are amended to include procedures to review and adopt future countywide
planning policy amendments, whichever comes first.

a. If the countywide planning policies are amended to include procedures to review and
adopt future countywide planning policy amendments before June 30, 2024, this
interlocal agreement shall automatically terminate upon adoption of said amendments
by the County Council.

b. If the countywide planning policies are not amended to include procedures to review
and adopt future countywide planning policy amendments by June 30, 2024, this
interlocal agreement shall automatically terminate on June 30, 2024.

2020 Interlocal Agreement — Interim Procedures to Amend Countywide Planning Policies

4

188




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have signed this agreement, effective on the date
indicated in Section 2 of this agreement.

CITY OF BELLINGHAM

By
Seth Fleetwood, Mayor

Date

Approved as to form:
Office of the City Attorney

Attest

STATE OF WASHINGTON )

) SS.

County of Whatcom )
Onthis ___ day of

, 2020, before me personally appeared SETH

FLEETWOOQOD, to me known to be the Mayor of the CITY OF BELLINGHAM, and who
executed the above instrument and who acknowledged to me the act of signing and sealing

thereof.

189

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State
of Washington residing at

My appointment expires:

2020 Interlocal Agreement — Interim Procedures to Amend Countywide Planning Policies

5




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have signed this agreement, effective on the date
indicated in Section 2 of this agreement.

CITY OF BLAINE

By
Michael Jones, City Manager

Date

Approved as to form:
Office of the City Attorney

Attest
STATE OF WASHINGTON )

) SS.
County of Whatcom )

Onthis __ day of

, 2020, before me personally appeared

MICHAEL JONES, to me known to be the City Manager of the CITY OF BLAINE, and
who executed the above instrument and who acknowledged to me the act of signing and

sealing thereof.

190

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State

of Washington residing at
My appointment expires:

2020 Interlocal Agreement — Interim Procedures to Amend Countywide Planning Policies

6




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have signed this agreement, effective on the date
indicated in Section 2 of this agreement.

CITY OF EVERSON

By
John Perry, Mayor

Date

Approved as to form:
Office of the City Attorney

Attest
STATE OF WASHINGTON )

) SS.
County of Whatcom )

Onthis ___ day of

, 2020, before me personally appeared JOHN

PERRY, to me known to be the Mayor of the CITY OF EVERSON, and who executed the
above instrument and who acknowledged to me the act of signing and sealing thereof.

191

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State
of Washington residing at

My appointment expires:

2020 Interlocal Agreement — Interim Procedures to Amend Countywide Planning Policies

7




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have signed this agreement, effective on the date
indicated in Section 2 of this agreement.
CITY OF FERNDALE

By
Greg Hansen, Mayor

Date

Approved as to form:
Office of the City Attorney

Attest

STATE OF WASHINGTON )
) SS.
County of Whatcom )

Onthis ___ day of , 2020, before me personally appeared GREG
HANSEN, to me known to be the Mayor of the CITY OF FERNDALE, and who executed
the above instrument and who acknowledged to me the act of signing and sealing thereof.

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State
of Washington residing at
My appointment expires:

2020 Interlocal Agreement — Interim Procedures to Amend Countywide Planning Policies

8

192




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have signed this agreement, effective on the date
indicated in Section 2 of this agreement.

CITY OF LYNDEN

By
Scott Korthuis, Mayor

Date

Approved as to form:
Office of the City Attorney

Attest

STATE OF WASHINGTON )

) SS.

County of Whatcom )
Onthis ___ day of

, 2020, before me personally appeared SCOTT

KORTHUIS, to me known to be the Mayor of the CITY OF LYNDEN, and who executed
the above instrument and who acknowledged to me the act of signing and sealing thereof.

193

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State
of Washington residing at
My appointment expires:

2020 Interlocal Agreement — Interim Procedures to Amend Countywide Planning Policies

9




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have signed this agreement, effective on the date
indicated in Section 2 of this agreement.
CITY OF NOOKSACK

By
James Ackerman, Mayor

Date

Approved as to form:
Office of the City Attorney

Attest

STATE OF WASHINGTON )
) SS.
County of Whatcom )

Onthis ___ day of , 2020, before me personally appeared JAMES
ACKERMAN, to me known to be the Mayor of the CITY OF NOOKSACK, and who
executed the above instrument and who acknowledged to me the act of signing and sealing
thereof.

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State
of Washington residing at
My appointment expires:

2020 Interlocal Agreement — Interim Procedures to Amend Countywide Planning Policies

10

194




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have signed this agreement, effective on the date
indicated in Section 2 of this agreement.
CITY OF SUMAS

By
Kyle Christensen, Mayor

Date

Approved as to form:
Office of the City Attorney

Attest
STATE OF WASHINGTON )
County of Whatcom g >
Onthis ___ day of , 2020, before me personally appeared KYLE

CHRISTENSEN, to me known to be the Mayor of the CITY OF SUMAS, and who executed
the above instrument and who acknowledged to me the act of signing and sealing thereof.

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State
of Washington residing at
My appointment expires:

2020 Interlocal Agreement — Interim Procedures to Amend Countywide Planning Policies

11

195




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have signed this agreement, effective on the date

indicated in Section 4 of this agreement.

WHATCOM COUNTY

By
Satpal Sidhu, County Executive

Date

Approved as to form:
Whatcom County Prosecutor

Attest

STATE OF WASHINGTON )

) SS.

County of Whatcom )

On this ___ day of

, 2020, before me personally appeared SATPAL

SIDHU, to me known to be the County Executive of WHATCOM COUNTY, and who
executed the above instrument and who acknowledged to me the act of signing and sealing

thereof.

196

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of
Washington residing at
My appointment expires:

2020 Interlocal Agreement — Interim Procedures to Amend Countywide Planning Policies

12




197

CITY OF LYNDEN

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Meeting Date: March 16, 2020
Name of Agenda ltem: | Public Safety Draft Minutes- February 12, 2020
Section of Agenda: Other Business
Department: Police
Council Committee Review: Legal Review:
[J Community Development Public Safety [ Yes - Reviewed
U] Finance [ Public Works [ No - Not Reviewed
[] Parks [ Other: Review Not Required
Attachments:

Public Safety Draft Minutes- February 12, 2020

Summary Statement:

Public Safety Draft Minutes- February 12, 2020 attached for review.

Recommended Action:

For Council review.




CITY OF LYNDEN

POLICE DEPARTMENT
Steve Taylor, Police Chief
(360) 354 - 2828

PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
4:00 p.m. February 12, 2020
Police Department Training Room

COMMITTEE

1. ROLL CALL:
Members present. Mayor Scott Korthuis and Councilors Mark Wohlrab, Brent
Lenssen and Gary Bode

Staff present: City Administrator Mike Martin, Chief Mark Billmire, Chief Steve
Taylor, Assistant Chief Tom Hatley, Lieutenant Jeremy Bos, Lieutenant Russ
Martin, Support Services Manager Holly Vega

2. ACTION ITEMS: None

3. INFORMATION ITEMS:
A. Lynden WATCH update
Councilor Wohlrab gave a brief update on the Lynden WATCH program,
noting some safety weather related posts were added to the page.

4. ITEMS ADDED:
A. Gary Vis provided the Chamber of Commerce 2020 Event schedule. The
Committee recommended Council approval at the Feb. 18, 2020 meeting.

B. City Administrator Mike Martin spoke of an initiative to streamline the council
committee packet process, similar to MuniCode. Also encouraged was the
option of using tablets instead of paper.

C. The Public Safety 2020 meeting schedule was distributed and Holly Vega will
add the dates to the City calendars.

FIRE DEPARTMENT

1. ACTION ITEMS: None

2. INFORMATION ITEMS:
A. Interim Fire Chief Jason Van der Veen NWFRS to give an update for
District-21.
Interim Fire Chief Jason Van der Veen was not present.

203 19" Street, Lynden, WA 98264
www.lyndenwa.org Page 1 of 2

198




B. Monthly report
Chief Billmire reviewed the monthly report for January with the average
response time under 4:00 minutes. Volunteer hours helped to fill in for the
vacant firefighter position.

C. Recruitment Update
There were 39 applicants through National Testing Network, which have been
narrowed down to 20. Oral boards are scheduled for this week, then 6
candidates will move forward to Chief’s interviews.

D. Station Update
The request for proposals has been advertised, closing within 30 days.
Review will begin in March to narrow it down to 3-4 to bring in for rating.

E. AC Hatley training/FM report
Assistant Chief Hatley noted long term plans for training are in place, and
underway. He has also been working with Chief Baar on Fire Marshal details.

3. ITEMS ADDED:
A. Chief Billmire discussed an incident in which 3 firefighters were exposed to a
patient’s blood. Exposure protocols were followed, and the incident is being
reviewed for any adjustments that can be made to the protocols.

POLICE DEPARTMENT

1. ACTION ITEMS: None

2. INFORMATION ITEMS:

A. Whatcom Co. Jail Use Agreement Amendment adding Kittitas Co. Jalil
The proposed amendment adds Kittitas Co. Jail and removes Yakima Co. Jalil
facility. It has been reviewed by the City attorney and recommended for
Council approval at the Feb 18, 2020 meeting.

B. Monthly report
Chief Taylor overviewed the monthly report for January. The bulk of overtime
hours was for shift coverage, which should see some relief with the 2 new
officers coming onboard.

Three subjects are in custody following the recent shooting at the City park;
more charges may be forthcoming as the investigation continues.

Meeting adjourned 4:40p.m

Next Meeting Date: March 12, 2020

203 19" Street, Lynden, WA 98264
www.lyndenwa.org Page 2 of 2

199




200

CITY OF LYNDEN

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Meeting Date: March 16, 2020

Name of Agenda ltem: | Public Works Committee Meeting Minutes March 4, 2020
Section of Agenda: Approval of Minutes

Department: Public Works

Council Committee Review: Legal Review:

[J Community Development [ Public Safety [ Yes - Reviewed

[ Finance Public Works ] No - Not Reviewed
[ Parks ] Other: Review Not Required
Attachments:

March 4, 2020 Draft Public Works Committee Meeting Minutes

Summary Statement:

Draft minutes for the March 4, 2020 Public Works Committee meeting.

Recommended Action:

For Review




201

CITY OF LYNDEN

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
360-354-3446

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MINUTES

4:15 PM March 4, 2020
City Hall 2" Floor Large Conference Room

1. ROLL CALL

Members Present: Mayor Scott Korthuis; Councilors Gary Bode, Ron De Valois and Jerry
Kuiken

Members Absent. None

Staff Present: City Administrator Mike Martin; Public Works Director Steve Banham;
Programs Manager Mark Sandal; Administrative Office Manager
Heather Sytsma; and Sr. Admin. Assistant Miriam Kentner

Public Present: Gary Vis

2. ACTIONITEMS

A. Approve Minutes from February 13, 2020
Bode motioned to approve the minutes, and De Valois seconded the motion.

Action
The minutes from February 13, 2020 were approved.

B. Amend Truck Routes in Lynden
Banham presented the current truck routes Ordinance 10.16.040 and reviewed possible
amendments based on comments received. The Committee discussed how designating
specific truck routes is intended to minimize truck use on roads that are not be designed
for heavy truck use (i.e. insufficient road base or turning radius needed for trucks). The
Committee was generally satisfied with the current limited route placement. Banham
suggested reviewing and possibly adding additional signage to increase visibility of the
truck routes and suggested including this signage in the wayfinding.
The Committee agreed that they would like to revisit adding Front Street (west of the
Guide Meridian) to the truck routes once it is complete.

Action

The Public Works Committee concurred to not adopt any changes to the current
ordinance at this time and was in support of using the wayfinding signage to
increase public awareness of the established truck routes.

Public Works Committee Minutes Page 1 of 4
March 4, 2020



C.

Vactor Waste Renewal Option with City of Bellingham- Authorization to Award
Through 2021

Banham presented the annual renewal memorandum with the City of Bellingham for the
use of the Vactor Waste Facility. This Interlocal Agreement would commence January 1,
2020 and terminate on December 31, 2020.

Action

The Public Works Committee concurred to recommend approval of the City of
Bellingham Interlocal Agreement (#2016-0221) effective January 1, 2020, for vactor
waste facility use, to the City Council. They also agreed to include with this year’s
approval a provision that allows the mayor to renew the agreement next year
(2021) if there is no change to the rates or other substantial changes to the terms.

3. INFORMATION ITEMS

A.

Introduce Six Year Transportation Improvement Plan (2021-2026)

Banham introduced the Six Year Transportation Improvement Plan (STIP) (2021-2026).
The Committee discussed the individual projects with Banham, noting the possible
addition of Foxtail Street, South Park Street, and Dickinson Park to the STIP. De Valois
and the mayor asked about including a partial reimbursement agreement from the
properties abutting the Foxtail Street improvements. Martin stated these would need to
be in place before the project is awarded The Committee also discussed what part of
the construction should be reimbursable and specifically identified utility extensions to
serve future abutting lots. Sandal explained that he will review the subdivision plat
requirements for Foxtail Street and will bring information to a future Public Works
Committee meeting for review.

This STIP plan will come back to the committee in April recommending that it be
forwarded to City Council to set a Public Hearing in May.

Flood Damage January 31 — February 3, 2020 And WWTP Outfall Mitigation
Plantings

Banham stated that Public works staff has prepared a preliminary damage assessment
which has been submitted to Whatcom County Emergency Management reflecting the
damage from the Flood Event. The costliest damage occurred to the mitigation plantings
required as part of the newly completed Wastewater Treatment Plant outfall. Most of the
plantings washed away in the flood. Total cost of replacement, including construction
management, is estimated at over $100,000. The new outfall itself did well and
sustained no damage.

. Downtown Business Association “Hanging Basket Trees”

Banham stated that the Downtown Business Association (DBA) is considering acquiring
“Hanging Basket Trees” to be placed downtown at various locations, out of the
pedestrian walkways. The Committee discussed cost and location of the basket trees.
Banham noted that Van Wingerden Greenhouse has offered to donate the fabricated
frames that would hold up the flower baskets to look like trees. They will be watered
using a timer and should require limited labor by Public Works — removing and existing
tree and preparing the ground to support the new structures. The Public Works
Committee concurred to support the addition of these to the “Hanging Basket Trees".

Public Works Committee Minutes Page 2 of 4
March 4, 2020

202




D. Projects:

1.

Industrial Condensate- Riverview to Outfall

Sandal explained the SEPA application was submitted to City Planning for review as
the County has allowed Lynden to act as the lead. Sandal explained the project is
progressing slowly due to the required and extensive County permitting process.

Industrial Condensate - Darigold Stormwater to Fishtrap Creek
Sandal stated that the project currently being constructed by Faber Construction is
near completion and project completion is expected to happen in March.

7" Street Revitalization
Sandal explained that this project was delayed due to weather and has a scheduled
restart date of March 16.

17" Street Design

Banham presented an updated map of the 17" Street Extension project which show
the addition of a pedestrian sidewalk on the west side, the new water main which
connects at the south end near Fishtrap Creek, and street crossing that lines up with
a the future trail extension into Dickenson Park. Sandal has worked with Planning to
submit the Critical Areas permits associated with the project. The potential start date
is scheduled for this summer. The map will be added to the City’s website for the
neighborhood and other member of the public to view.

Judson Street Low Impact Development

Sandal stated that the project scope and budget were received today from
Reichhardt and Ebe Engineering. Sandal noted that this project is DOE grant-funded,
but that the utility improvements will be done using matching sewer utility funding.
Staff is planning to submit a construction grant for construction of some portion of the
design in late 2020 for construction likely not beginning until 2022.

Lynden Fire Station Remodel — RFQ’s received today

Banham stated that two submittals were received today. Staff will review the
submittals in more detail with Fire Department staff to select the design firm for the
full bid package. The goal is to have good construction estimates to use for
budgeting for construction in 2021.

Pepin Creek Project — Pepin Lite Update

Banham stated that the Community Development Committee meeting on March 26™
will discuss the estimated cost range of proposed Pepin Lite project. The Public
Works Committee is invited to attend.

Trail — 17" Street to Dickinson Park

Sandal stated that Reichardt & Ebe completed a preliminary survey of the Dickinson
Park site. As a result of the survey notice, the Creekview Crest condominium
association’s attorney has contacted the City regarding use of the proposed trail
easement asserting that the easement has expired. This is being reviewed by the
City Attorney.

Managed Aquifer Recharge (MAR) Project information
Banham stated that Public Works is preparing an application for Department of
Ecology Streamflow Restoration Act funding for a Managed Aquifer Recharge

Public Works Committee Minutes Page 3 of 4
March 4, 2020

203




204

project. The application is due at the end of March. Banham and Sandal reviewed
the concept of the project which will take high flows out of the river during the winter
and infiltrate them into a groundwater aquifer that returns water into the river during
the summer low flow periods. This water would be used as mitigation for a new
water right for the City. Staff and consultant hydrogeological consultants have met
with a number of stakeholders including local tribes who appear to support the
proposal, many providing letters of support for the City receiving the grant.

10. Old Water Treatment Plant Site- DBA Parking
Sandal stated that the Downtown Business Association (DBA) has asked about the
potential for parking on the old water treatment plant site. The Committee discussed
the possibility of using the area for more parking.

11. Berthusen Park Restroom
Banham stated the building permit for the Berthusen Park Restroom structure has
been submitted to Whatcom County. The City has made arrangements to have the
bridge load rated. Sandal noted that the City is seeking a shorelines variance
because the existing restroom is closer to the shoreline than currently allowed for
new construction. The Park would like to use the same site with its current approved
septic drain field. This variance is causing a delay in the permitting process. Once
the permit is received, the new restroom will be ordered, and construction will
continue.

12. West Front Street
Banham will be meeting with the Port of Bellingham to discuss the funding
application for Whatcom County’s Economic Development Investment Program (EDI)
program. Staff intends to present to County Council again in March. Banham stated
some changes have been made to the application, including a slightly reduced
funding requested. Staff has also received letters of support from local businesses.

13. Line Road Pedestrian Improvements
Sandal stated construction is on hold due to weather.

4. |ITEMS ADDED:

A. Leak Adjustment Request - 924 East Grover Street
Banham presented a request for a leak adjustment at 924 East Grover Street. He noted
that this is a somewhat unique request as the resident was moved to a care facility and
has since passed away. Her account was set up for autopay and although no one was
living in the house funds continued to be withdrawn from the account while the service
line continued to leak. Upon investigation by the family following her death, a leak
adjustment request was submitted. The Committee concurred to support the request for
the 7- month, under $500, refund.

B. Riverview Road Property Development — Blake Starkenburg
Bode stated that Blake Starkenburg has inquired about correctly identifying the flood line
boundary on his property. Banham stated that Starkenburg should talk with Jerry
Blankers or his engineers, as they were just involved in the LOMR (Letter of Map
Revision) process with FEMA. Sandal stated he would contact Blake Starkenburg to
discuss this.

The meeting was adjourned at 5:45 p.m.

Public Works Committee Minutes Page 4 of 4
March 4, 2020



CITY OF LYNDEN

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

205

Meeting Date:

March 16, 2020

Name of Agenda ltem:

Calendar

Section of Agenda:

Other Business

Department:

Administration

Council Committee Review: Legal Review:

0 Community Development [ Public Safety [ Yes - Reviewed

O Finance 0 Public Works [0 No - Not Reviewed
O Parks [ Other: N/A Review Not Required
Attachments:

Outlook Calendar

Summary Statement:

See next page.

Recommended Action:

None




March 16, 2020
Monday

206

3:00 PM - 4:00 PM

4:00 PM - 5:00 PM

7:00 PM - 9:00 PM

Finance Committee Meeting -- City Hall 1st Floor Large Conference Room

Visit WWW.LYNDENWA.ORG to view the agenda

Parks Committee Meeting -- City Hall 1st Floor Large Conference Room

Council Meetings -- Annex Council Chamber

March 17, 2020
Tuesday

9:00 AM - 11:00 AM

Copy: Small Cities Meeting -- City Hall 1st Floor Large Conference Room

March 18, 2020
Wednesday

10:00 AM - 11:00 AM

7:00 PM - 8:30 PM

7:00 PM - 8:30 PM

EVALUATION-Nic -- Mike's Office
Good Morning:

Mike would like to conduct your annual evaluation on this date in place of
the usually scheduled 1 on 1 meeting.

Please Pam know if this doesn’t work for your schedule.

Thanks.

Berthusen Advisory -- Annex South East Conference Room

Berthusen Advisory Meeting Wednesday March 18, 2020, 7pm at the City
Annex Building

Board of Adjustment -- City Hall 2nd Floor Large Conference Room

March 19, 2020
Thursday

12:00 AM - 12:00 AM

Pam Brown

Fire Department Training -- City Annex Council Chambers

1 3/12/2020 8:57 AM




Thursday

March 19, 2020 Continued 207

9:00 AM - 11:00 AM

9:00 AM - 10:00 AM

Technical Review Committee Meeting -- City Hall 2nd Floor Large Conference Room

Mike/Chief Taylor 1/1 -- Mike's Office

March 20, 2020
Friday

12:00 AM - 12:00 AM

8:30 AM - 9:30 AM

Fire Department Training -- City Annex Council Chambers
Please See Above

Check In-Mike/Anthony -- Mike's Office

March 23, 2020
Monday

9:00 AM - 10:00 AM

1:30 PM - 2:30 PM

7:00 PM - 9:00 PM

Pam Brown

Mike/Vern 1/1 -- Mike's Office

Denise's Evaluation -- Mike's Office

Joint Council/Parks & Rec District/School District -- Annex Council Chamber
Good Afternoon everyone.

The joint Council, School District and Parks & Rec. District meeting is
scheduled for March 23 at 7:00 p.m. at the Annex Building.

Please send any suggested agenda items directly to Mike Martin.

He can be reached at 360-255-7109 (direct line) or you can email him at
martinm@Iyndenwa.org

Thank you and please don’t hesitate to reach out if | can assist you further.

2 3/12/2020 8:57 AM




March 23, 2020 Continued 208

Monday

Pamela (Pam) D. Brown, MMC, CPRO | City Clerk
City of Lynden
300 4t Street, Lynden, WA 98264

Direct: (360) 255-7085 | Email: brownpa@Ilyndenwa.org

Our Vision: Cultivating Exceptional Service for Our Extraordinary
Community

We Value: Communication — Teamwork — Community — Excellence —
Integrity

March 24, 2020
Tuesday

8:30 AM - 9:30 AM

Leadership Team Meeting -- City Hall 1st Floor Large Conference Room

March 25, 2020
Wednesday

9:00 AM - 10:00 AM

2:00 PM - 3:30 PM

Check-In Mark/Mike -- Mike's Office

Wellness/LEAF Committee Meeting -- City Hall 1st Floor Large Conference Room
Christina and Miriam will be attending the AWC Health Summit in
Lynnwood on the regularly scheduled Wednesday.

So we are pushing the meeting back a week.

March 26, 2020
Thursday

9:00 AM - 10:00 AM

Pam Brown

EVALUATION-STEVE T. -- Mike's Office
Good Morning:

Mike would like to conduct your annual evaluation on this date in place of
the usually scheduled 1 on 1 meeting.

3 3/12/2020 8:58 AM




March 26, 2020 Continued 209

Thursday

Please Pam know if this doesn’t work for your schedule.
Thanks.

4:00 PM - 5:30 PM Rescheduled March CDC (Pepin) -- City Hall 1st Floor Large Conference Room
Rescheduled meeting date has been confirmed — all CDC members and
the mayor are able to attend. Thanks! - Heidi

7:30 PM - 9:30 PM Planning Commission Meeting -- Annex Council Chamber

March 27, 2020

Friday
10:00 AM - 11:00 AM Check-In Steve/Mike -- Mike's Office
11:00 AM - 12:00 PM CheckOIn Heidi/Mike -- Mike's Office

March 31, 2020
Tuesday

8:30 AM - 10:30 AM Leadership Team Meeting -- City Hall 1st Floor Large Conference Room
This LT meeting will be used for conversation with Dennis D. concerning
the April Retreat.

April 1, 2020

Wednesday
All Day Court -- Annex Council Chamber; Annex East Training Room; Annex South East Conference Room; Annex
North East Conference Room
4:00 PM - 5:00 PM Public Safety Committee Meeting -- Police Training Room

April 2, 2020
Thursday

9:00 AM - 11:00 AM Technical Review Committee Meeting -- City Hall 2nd Floor Large Conference Room

Pam Brown 4 3/12/2020 8:58 AM




April 3, 2020
Friday

210

8:30 AM - 9:30 AM

EVALUATION -- Mike's Office
Good Morning:

Mike would like to conduct your annual evaluation on this date in place of

the usually scheduled 1 on 1 meeting.
Please Pam know if this doesn’t work for your schedule.
Thanks.

April 6, 2020
Monday

7:00 PM - 9:00 PM

Pam Brown

Council Meeting -- Annex Council Chamber

3/12/2020 8:58 AM



	Top
	1. Draft Council Minutes - March 2, 2020
	ES-Draft Council Minutes
	20200302-regular-meeting-DRAFT

	2. Sara Bernardy- Presentation for 2020 Census Information
	ES-2020Census
	Census 101 PPT_Lynden City Council 16 Mar 2020 
	2020CensusPresentation

	3. Interlocal Agreement with City of Bellingham for Vactor Waste Facility Use
	ES-Interlocal Agreement with City of Bellingham for Vactor Waste Facility Use
	2020 - 4th Renewal.Vactor Waste Interlocal.Lynden

	4. Professional Service Agreement – BOSTEC, Inc.
	ES-Request Bostec Inc
	Bostec Professional Services Agreement 02.21.2020

	5. Client Service Agreement- Pinnacle
	ES-Request Pinnacle
	Pinnacle Investigation - CSA

	6. PRD Amendment 19-01-RB Development
	ES-2020_0316_PRD Amendment 19-01_RB Development
	2-27-2020_Applicant Presentation
	RB Development Remand PC Packet reduced
	Legal Interpretation_Unit Transfer for RB Development_Memo 3.12.20 FINAL
	PC Findings_Reso 19-03_02.27.2020_draft
	PC Minutes_02.27.2020

	7. Reinstate Parks Maintenance Supervisor Position
	ES Reinstate Parks Maintenance Supervisor position
	DRAFT-Maint Supvr-Parks

	8. Interlocal Agreement - Interim Policies to Amend Countywide Planning Policies
	ES-2020_0316_CWPP Interlocal Agreement
	3.16.2020_CC Memo_Legal review of CWPP agreement
	CWPP - Interlocal memo-to-County council (February 4, 2020)
	CWPP-Interlocal (Draft - February 11, 2020)

	9. Public Safety Draft Minutes- February 12, 2020
	ES-Public Safety Draft Minutes- February 12, 2020
	Public Safety Draft Minutes- February 12, 2020

	10. Draft-Public Works Committee Meeting Minutes March 4, 2020
	ES-Minutes March 4 2020
	March 4 2020 Draft

	11. Outlook Calendar
	ES-Calendar
	Calendar Details Style

	Bottom

